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Delcltte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Honorable County Executive
Honorable County Comptroller
Members of the County Legislature
County of Erie, New York

Deloitte & Touche LlP
6500 Sheridan Drive
Suite 216
Williamsville, NY 14221-4842
USA

Tel: +17168437200
Fax:+17168567760
wwvv.deloitte.com

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the County of Erie, New York (the "County") as of and for the year ended
December 31,2010 (with the Erie Community College for the year ended August 31, 2010), which
collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the fmancial statements of
Erie Community College, which represent 4.0% and 6.8%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the
government-wide financial statements. We did not audit the financial statements of the Erie Community
College Foundation, Inc. and Auxiliary Services Corporation of Erie Community Col1ege, Inc., which are
shown as aggregate discretely presented component units. We did not audit the financial statements of the
Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority, which represent 28.0% and 25.4%, respectively, of the assets and
revenues of the governmental activities. We did not audit the financial statements of Erie County Medical
Center Corporation (ECMCC), a discretely presented component unit. Additionally, we did not audit the
financial statements of ECMC Lifeline Foundation, Inc. or Research for Health in Erie County, Inc.,
which are shown within the ECMCC discretely presented component unit. We did not audit the financial
statements of the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation and Subsidiary, a
discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose
reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion insofar as it related to amounts included for
those component units, Erie Community Col1ege, and Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority, is based on
the reports of other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free ofmaterial
misstatement. The financial statements of the Erie Community Col1ege Foundation, Inc., the Auxiliary
Services Corporation of Erie Community Col1ege, Inc., the ECMC Lifeline Foundation, Inc., Research for
Health in Erie County, Inc., and the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
and Subsidiary were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the County's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overal1 financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the
reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Member 01
DeloltteToucherohmatsuLimitedComm. 21D-2 
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In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the goverrnnental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of December 31, 2010, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereofand the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued ourreport datedJune 30, 2011,
on ourconsideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting andourtests of its
compliance with certain provisions oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results ofthat testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

The management's discussion and analysis and the schedule offunding progress as listed on pages 3 to 11
and page 80 are not a required part ofthe basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by the Goverrnnental Accounting Standards Board. We and the other auditors have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
ofmeasurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit
the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Office ofManagement and
Budget Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

DJOI:tr(e-r;~ LLP
1

June 30, 2011

- 2 -
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-------------------------------COUNTYOF ERIE, NEW YORK • 3

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2010

(unaudited)

This section of the County of Erie, New York's (the "County") Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and
Analysis presents a discussion and analysis of the County's fmancial performance during the year ended December 31, 2010, and
incorporates financial information from the year ended December 31, 2009 for comparative analysis purposes. Please read it in
conjunction with the County's basic financial statements following this section. All amounts in this Management's Discussion
and Analvsis, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

FINANCIAL IDGHLIGHTS

The County's assets exceeded liabilities at the close of the 2010 fiscal year by $14,524 (net assets). This consists of $6,231
restricted for specific purposes (restricted net assets), $388,609 invested in capital assets, net of related debt, and a deficit in
unrestricted net assets of$380,316 at December 31,2010.

•

•

•

•

The primary government's total net assets decreased by $12,760. Governmental activities decreased the County's net assets
by $9,016. Business type activities decreased the County's net assets by $3,744.

As of December 31, 2010, the County's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $273,834, an increase of
$135,719 in comparison to the prior year. Approximately 72.8% of the total combined governmental funds fund balance,
$199,241, is available to meet the County's current and future needs (unreservedfund balance).

At the end of the fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $113,460 or 90.5% ofthe total General Fund
fund balance of $125,313. Total unreserved designated General Fund fund balance was $46,556 at December 31, 2010.

The total bonded debt of the primary government increased by $129,176 or 18.4% during the 2010 fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the County's basic financial statements. The County's basic financial
statements include three components: 1) Government-wide financial statements, 2) Fund financial statements, and 3) Notes to the
financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, required supplementary information is included.

Government-Wide Financial Statements are two statements designed to provide readers with a broad overview of County
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement or Net Assets presents information on all County assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two
reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement ofActivities presents information showing how net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes
in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). Both of these government-wide financial statements
distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or in part a portion of their costs through user fees and charges
(business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government, public safety, health,
transportation, economic assistance and opportunity, culture and recreation, education, and home and community services. The
business-type activities of the County include Erie Community College ("College") and the Utilities Aggregation Fund. A fiscal
year ending August 31 is mandated by New York State law for the College. Accordingly, financial information for the College is
presented as ofand for the fiscal year then ended.

On July 12, 2005, the Governor of the State of New York signed legislation creating the Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority
("ECFSA"). The ECFSA began its work during 2005 in an advisory role and provides the County with financial oversight while
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4 • COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK --------------------------------

giving local leaders the ability to improve the County's fiscal condition without further State intervention. The ECFSA is
included as a governmental activity in the government-wide financial statements. On November 3, 2006, the ECFSA imposed a
control period on the County empowering the ECFSA to operate with its maximum authorized compliment of control and
oversight powers over County finances. On that date, the ECFSA also imposed a hiring freeze and a contract review process. The
ECFSA reverted to an advisory status on June 2, 2009 and maintained its advisory status through the 2010 fiscal year.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the County (i.e., the primary government) but also the legally
separate Buffalo and Erie County Public Library (the "Library"), Erie County Medical Center Corporation (the "ECMCC") and
other component units. Financial information for these discretely presented component units of the County is reported separately
from the financial information presented for the primary government itself. The Library does not issue separate financial
statements.

Fund financial statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All fimds of the County are divided into three categories:
governmentalfunds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental funds financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a county's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's
near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds Balance Sheet and the governmental funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.

The County maintains fifteen (15) individual governmental fimds. Additionally, the County reports the activities of its blended
component units within its governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and
in the governmental fimds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and ECFSA
blended component unit (reported as a major special revenue fund). Data from the other governmental funds and blended
component units are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for
the General Fund.

Proprietary funds - The County maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account
for the College and the Utilities Aggregation Fund, which is used to account for the bnlk purchase and resale of gas, oil, and
electric utilities.

Proprietary fimds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The
College is considered to be a major proprietary fund ofthe County.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not
reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the
County's own programs. The County has one fiduciary fund, the Agency Fund, which is used to account for fimds held by the
County as agent for employee withholdings, guarantee and bid deposits, court funds, monies due to other governments, and other
miscellaneous items. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary fimds.

Notes to the Financlal Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fimd financial statements.

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the County's progress in funding its obligation to provide other post­
employment benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found immediately following the notes to the
financial statements.
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COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK • 5

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of a government's fmancial position. In the case of the
County, assets exceeded liabilities by $14,524 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Summary of Net Assets as of December 31,2010 and 2009

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2010 2009 2Q10 2GGS ..nAn 2009~UIU

Current and other assets. . . . . . . . .. '" $ 566,830 $ 516,547 $ 45,737 $ 41,628 • 612,567 $ 558,175•
Capital assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 815,031 790,368 14,421 12,628 829,452 802,996

Total assets .......... ........... 1,381,861 1,306,915 60,158 54,256 1,442,019 1,361,171

Long-term liabilities. . . . .. . .......... 1,097,988 925,552 47,081 35,477 1,145,069 961,029
Other liabilities. . . . . . . . .. . .......... 265,140 353,614 17,286 19,244 282,426 372,858

Total liabilities ......... . . . . . . . . . . . 1,363,128 1,279,166 64,367 54,721 1,427,495 1,333,887

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt ............ . . . . . . . . . . . 374,188 373,664 14,421 12,628 388,609 386,292

Restricted ..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,231 16,148 6,231 16,148
Unrestricted (deficit) ..... . . ........ (361,686) (362,063) (18,630) (13,093) (380,316) (375,156)

Total net assets (deficit) .......... , $ 18,733 $ 27,749 $ (4,209) $ (465) $ 14,524 $ 27,284

A significant portion of the County's net assets at December 31,2010 ($388,609) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding and any unspent proceeds from bond issues. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County's investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the County's net assets ($6,231) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they
maybe used.

The remaining and largest component of the County's net assets, a deficit of $380,316, represents unrestricted net assets which
reflect all liabilities that are not related to the County's capital assets and which are not expected to be repaid from restricted
resources. Long-term liabilities are typically funded annually in the funds with revenues of that year. The combined total of (I)
Erie Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation ("ETASC", a blended component unit of the County) tobacco settlement asset­
backed bonds ($286,318), issued to be paid back with future tobacco proceeds which will be received annually over the next fifty
(50) years, and (2) the long-term liability associated with other post-employment benefits ($225,070), is greater than this deficit.
As the revenue recognition criteria for the future funding of these liabilities has not been met, no assets have been recorded to
offset these liabilities.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County is able to report positive balances in two of the three categories ofnet assets for
the County as a whole and in one category for its business-type activities. Governmental and business-type activities have
unrestricted net asset deficits of $361,686 and $18,630 respectively at December 31, 20I O.

The County's net assets decreased by $12,760 during the 2010 fiscal year, as further explained in the next section.

Comm. 21D-2 
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6 . COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK ---------------~~-~----~~---~-

The following table indicates the changes in net assets for governmental and business-type activities for the current and prior
fiscal years:

Summary of Changes in Net Assets for the Year Ended December 31,2010 and 2009

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenues:

Programrevenues;
Charges for services..... . . . . . . . . $ 74,808 $ 82,748 < 59,949 $ 58,297 $ 134,757 $ 141,045•
Operating grantsand

contributions .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 456,029 468,793 7,412 6,790 463,441 475,583
Capitalgrantsand

contributions ..... . . . . . . . ..... 25,718 12,282 25,718 12,282
General revenues:

Propertytaxes ..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 257,749 251,224 257,749 251,224
Sales and use taxes ... ._........... 661,933 646,893 661,933 646,893
Transfer taxes .... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,246 8,553 7,246 8,553

Non-operating revenues:
Federal, state and
localappropriations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72,463 63,255 72,463 63,255
Unrestricted interestearnings ....... 1,524 1,592 146 298 1,670 1,890
Miscellaneous and other .... . . . . . . . 14,622 8,628 14,622 8,628

Total revenues ..................... 1,499,629 1,480,713 139,970 128,640 1,639,599 1,609,353

Expenses:
General government .............. 423,161 420,026 423,161 420,026
Publicsafety ...... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 141,543 122,888 141,543 122,888
Health ................ . . . . . . . . . 82,855 89,927 82,855 89,927
Transportation ...... . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72,615 62,673 72,615 62,673
Economic assistance
and opportunity ................. 579,927 567,035 579,927 567,035

Cultureand recreation ............. 24,567 23,754 24,567 23,754
Education .......... . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75,529 70,716 75,529 70,716
Homeand community service ....... 53,186 48,628 53,186 48,628
Interestand fiscal charges .......... 37,833 39,511 37,833 39,511
Coliege .. " .................... 132,556 123,988 132,556 123,988
Purchase and resale of utilities . . . . . . 28,587 27,490 28,587 27,490

Total expenses .................... 1,491,216 1,445,158 161,143 151,478 1,652,359 1,596,636

Excess (deficiency)
beforetransfers ..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,413 35,555 (21,173) (22,838) (12,760) 12,717

Transfers. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .... . (17,429) (17,221) 17,429 17,221 --
Change in net assets ....... . . . . . . . . . (9,016) 18,334 (3,744) (5,617) (12,760) 12,717
Net assets (deflcttj . beginning 27,749 9,415 (465) 5,152 27,284 14,567

Net assets (deficit) - ending .. . . . . . . . . $ 18,733 $ 27,749 s (4,209) s (465) s 14,524 s 27,284
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Governmental activities

Governmental activities decreased the County's net assets by $9,016. Revenues and expenses increased by $18,916 (1.3%) and
$46,058 (3.2%), respectively, and net transfers out increased $208 (1.2%) from 2009 to 2010. Key elements of this increase are
as follows:

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

The $15,040 (2.3%) increase in the sales and use taxes category was primarily the result of taxable sales growth due in part
to Canadian consumers taking advantage of the stronger Canadian dollar. Rising fuel prices commencing in the fall of 20 10
also added to thisgrowth.

Revenue from property taxes increased by $6,525 (2.6%). Increases to the total tax levy ($9,108) mainly for assessment
growth, accounted for the increase.

Transfer tax revenues decreased $1,307 (15.3%) compared to 2009 as a result of reduced real property sales. Federal
homebuyer tax credits expired in Apri12010 which contributed to this decline.

Miscellaneous and other revenues grew by $5,994 (69.5%) primarily due to reimbursement of demolition costs ($1,113) for
the future construction of new facilities and an excess operating credit ($4,704) both received from ECMCC.

Capital grants and contributions increased $13,436 during the year as a result of increased Federal and State aid for road and
bridge projects ($9,221) and increased State aid for other building improvements and land development ($4,619).

Operating grants and contributions deceased $12,764 (2.7%) during the year. Decreases in State aid for social services
programs ($11,559), mental health programs ($4,755) and ECFSA efficiency grants ($3,744), coupled with a decrease in
ETASC tobacco revenues ($3,497), were offset by increased program funding from the federal government including
Federal Medicaid Assistance Percentage ($3,792) and various social services programs ($2,240) and increases in State aid
for the special needs preschool program ($4,888).

Public safety expenses increased by $18,655 or 15.2% primarily as a result of increases in salaries ($2,129), overtime
($4,035), retirement charges due to a one-time full payment of charges previously amortized and a contribution rate increase
mandated by the State ($6,521), other fringe benefits ($2,384) and contractual services ($1,431).

Economic assistance and opportunity expense increased by $12,892 (2.3%) chiefly due to increases in salaries and fringe
benefits ($9,898) and capital asset acquisitions below established capitalization thresholds ($3,560).

Transportation expenses increased $9,942 (15.9%) mainly as a result of increases in expenditures for road and bridge
maintenance projects and flood damage repair and cleanup ($8,576) and depreciation ($658).

Business-type activities

Business-type activities decreased the County's net assets by $3,744 in the 2010 fiscal year compared to a decrease of $5,617 in
2009. The College generated decreases in net assets of $3,962 and $5,561 for the years ended August 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The operating loss at August 31, 2010 was greater than the operating loss at August 31, 2009 by $7,671 as
operating revenues generated increased $903 and operating expenses increased $8,574. Revenues generated during the fiscal year
ended August 31, 2010 for student tuition and fees increased as a resnlt of an increased enrollment. An increase in Pell
scholarships awarded to students, and collectively bargained salary and wage increases, make up much of the expense increase.
The County sponsorship share of support to the College for the College's fiscal year ended August 31, 2010 was $17,429 and is
reported as a 2010 operating transfer to the College from the County's General ($15,629) and Special Capital ($1,800) funds.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with fmance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds - The general government functions are contained in the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and
Capital Projects Funds. The focus of the County's governmentalfimds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County's fmancing requirements. In particular,
unreservedfund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year. At December 31, 2010, the County's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of$273,834 which is an
increase of $135,719 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 72.8% of the combined fund balances ($199,241)
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8 . COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK ------------------------------

constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available to meet the County's current and future operational and capital needs.
The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been
committed (I) to liquidate contracts aud purchase orders of the prior period ($34,741); (2) to pay debt service ($28,288); (3) to
reflect prepaid items and loaus that are long-term in nature and thus do not represent available spendable resources ($10,209);
aud (4) for a variety ofother restricted purposes ($1,355). Following is a discussion of the significant balances and operations of
selected funds.

• General Fund ~ The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At December 31, 2010, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $113,460 while total fund balauce was $125,313. As a measure of the General Fund's
liquidity, it is useful to compare both unreserved fund balance aud total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved
fund balance -represents 9.3% of total expenditures (excluding other financing uses), while total fund balance represents
10.2% of that same amount.

Fund balauce in the County's General Fund increased by $23,475 during the 2010 fiscal year compared to 2009 when the
General Fund experienced au increase of $43,647.

• ECFSA General Fund - Short-term debt, specifically bond anticipation notes ("BANs") decreased by $122,665. This
represents reductions in BANs that matured in 2010 ($102,675) that were re-financed by the issuance of general obligation
bonds, reported in the ECFSA Debt Service Fund, and BANs needed to meet the County's short-term cash flow needs
during 2010 ($19,990). Interest and fiscal charges increased by $2,437.

• Road Special Revenue Fund - The 2010 General Fund subsidy to this fund decreased by $3,241 from the 2009 amount,
when in that year, additional transfers were made to alleviate a 2008 deficit fund balauce.

• Emergency Response Special Revenue Fund - The ending 2010 fund balance of $1,414 was comprised entirely of the
receipt of [mal reimbursements for damage related to a major snowstorm that occurred in October, 2006.

• Debt Service Fund ~ The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balauce of $8,324 which is reserved solely for the purpose of
payment of future debt service. The net decrease in fund balauce during the current year of $4,212 was due primarily to the
appropriation of prior year ending fund balauce in the amount of$4,998.

• ECFSA Debt Service Fund - This fund was established during 2010 as a result of the ECFSA issuing long-term general
obligation bonds on behalf of the County, At year-end, the ECFSA held County cash in the amount of $9,420 that was
accumulated by intercepting aud withholding the County's sales tax receipts from New York State. These monies will be
used for future debt service payments.

• Capital Projects Funds - The County maintains six (6) capital projects funds which account for the construction and re­
construction of general public improvements. At the end of the 2010 fiscal year, the total fund balauces amounted to
$92,476 of which $26,381 was encumbered for contracts underway, $669 was designated for future construction projects at
ECMCC, and $65,426 was undesignated and unreserved.

All capital project funds reported positive fund balances at December 31, 2010. Proceeds from the issuance of general
obligation bonds on May 18, 2010 in the amount of $157,995 trausferred in from ECFSA remediated prior year deficit fund
balauces in the General Government Buildings, Equipment aud Improvements Fund ($1,816), Highways, Roads, Bridges
and Equipment Capital Projects Fund ($21,115) aud Special Capital Projects Fund ($6,218).

During 2010, the County's capital outlay increased in the General Government Buildings, Equipment and Improvements
Fund ($23,355), Highways, Roads, Bridges and Equipment Capital Projects Fund ($8,138) and Sewers, Facilities,
Equipment and Improvements Fund ($2,773), and decreased in the Special Capital Projects Fund ($487) and ECMCC
Capital Projects Fund ($220).
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Proprietary funds - The County's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements but in more detail. The College had an unrestricted net deficit of$21,127 at August 31, 2010,

The following table shows actual revenues, expenses, and results of operations for the current and prior fiscal years:

Summary of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
For the Year ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Nonmajor
Major Fund Fund

College Utilities
August 31, Aggr~gation Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Operatingrevenues... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 38,556 $ 37,653 $ 28,805 $ 27,434 $ 67,361 $ 65,087
Operating expenses .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 132,539 123,965 28,587 27,490 161,126 151,455

Operating loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (93,983) (86,312) 218 (56) (93,765) (86,368)
Non-operating revenues, net . . . . . . . . . . . 72,592 63,530 72,592 63,530
Net (loss) income before

contributions and transfers ... . ..... (21,391) (22,782) 218 (56) (21,173) (22,838)
Transfers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... 17,429 17,221 17,429 17,221

Change in net assets ........... $ (3,962) $ (5,561) $ 218 $ (56) $ (3,744) $ (5,617)

The net loss before contributions and transfers of enterprise funds of $21,173 is comprised of a net loss of $21,391 for the
College and net income of $218 for the Utilities Aggregation Fund.

The College reported a total net assets deficit of $6,706 at August 31, 2010. The College's net assets have decreased
significantly in each of the past three fiscal years as a result of the adoption in 2007 ofGASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and
Financial Reportingfor Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions,

Other factors concerning the activities of these funds have been addressed in the previous discussion of the County's business­
type activities.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for the General Fund on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles, except that encumbrances are reported as budgeted expenditures in the year of incurrence of commitment to purchase.

During the 2010 fiscal year there was a $358,136 decrease in total budgeted revenues between the original and final budget. The
main component of the net decrease is the reclassification of $370,630 from the 'Sales and Use Taxes' line to the 'Transfers In'
line to match sales tax transfers received from the ECFSA which intercepts the County portion of sales tax remirted by the New
York State Department ofTaxation and Finance.

The budget for other financing sources was increased during the year by $370,754, primarily for the sales and use taxes
reclassification referred to in the previous paragraph.

Budgeted appropriations and other financing uses increased by $33,910. Budgeted expenditures increased in general government
support ($19,860), primarily for risk retention ($6,421) and sales tax sharing with local governments ($5,737). The increase in
transfers out ($8,139) occmred maiuly due to transfers for debt service ($5,395); public safety ($8,079) primarily for jail
management overtime ($4,536) and culture and recreation ($4,136) primarily for the benefit of the library ($3,000). These
increases were partially offset by budgeted expenditure decreases in economic assistance and opportunity ($6,866), primarily due
to decreases in child care programs ($7,144), foster care programs ($4,810), social services full-time salaries ($3,795) net of an
increase for mandated disproportionate share program payments for the benefit of ECMCC ($7,792).

For the year, actual revenues exceeded budget by $9,371. This was mainly due to a positive budgetary variance in miscellaneous
revenue for $9,329 mostly as a result of cancellation of prior year liabilities for social services programs ($5,587) and receipt of a
first time excess operating support payment from ECMCC ($4,704). Sales and use taxes experienced a positive variance of
$8,251. A negative budgetary variance in intergovernmental revenue amounted to $10,170 mainly due to reduced reimbursable
expenditures for social services ($5,315) and mental health ($2,786) programs.
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10 . COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK -~~~~~~~-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

Actual expenditures were less than budget by $34,616 primarily due to savings ill various categories as follows: general
government support ($14,169), principally for risk retention expenditures ($5,315) and fringe benefits ($2,036); economic
assistance and opportunity ($8,951), mainly for social services programs and health ($6,247) chiefly for mental health programs.

The total favorable budget to actual variance for the year amounted to $45,627.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of December 31,2010, amounted
to $829,452 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, infrastructure, buildings and
improvements, improvements other than buildings, equipment, College library collections, and construction in progress. The
total increase in the County's investment in capital assets for the current period was 3.3%.

The County's infrastructure assets are recorded at historical cost in the government-wide financial statements as required by
GASB Statement No. 34. The County has elected to depreciate infrastructure assets.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included an increase to construction in progress of$34,837. Depreciation
on transportation network assets exceeded additions by $9,215.

Capital assets net of depreciation for the governmental and business-type activities are presented below:

Summary of Capital Assets at December 31,2010 and 2009
(net of depreciation)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Land ............................. $ 30,415 $ 30,353 $ $ $ 30,415 $ 30,353
Buildingsand Improvements ........... 252,631 252,455 8,232 6,851 260,863 259,306
Improvements other

than Buildings..................... 15,234 15,483 47 50 15,281 15,533
Sewer and Transportation

Networks ........................ 398,878 405,824 398,878 405,824
Machinery and Equipment ............. 37,594 40,491 3,635 3,504 41,229 43,995
Library Collections ................... 1,256 1,292 1,256 1,292
Construction in Progress .............. 80,279 45,762 1,251 931 81,530 46,693

Total ............................ $ 815,031 $ 790,368 $ 14,421 $ 12,628 $ 829,452 $ 802,996

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in Note I (F) and Note VIII of this report.
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Debt Administration

At December 31, 2010, the primary government had teta1 bonded debt outstanding of $832,786 as compared to $703,610 in the
prior year. During the year, payments and other reductions of bonded debt amounted to $146,535. Additions, accretions and
other adjustments amounted to $275,7i 1. The issuance of long-term debt is a direct function of the County and is reported within
the governmental activities columns inthe government-wide financial statements.

Summary of Long-term Debt at December 31, 2010 and 2009
Governmental

Activities

2010 2009

517,298 $ 400,024
(246,005)

271,293 400,024
246,015
319,545 322,420
(11,422) (11,533)
34,745 16,950

(27,390) (24,251)

832,786 703,610
501 3,232

...... 187 $ 706,842

$ErieCounty bonds .
Less: ECFSA mirror bonds .

Net Erie County bonds .................•................................... .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
ECFSA bonds. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .
ETASC bonds .
Unamortized bond discounts. . . . . . . .
Unamortized bond premiums. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .
Unamortized deferred amounts on refundings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .

Total bonded debt .
Long-term bond anticipation notes. . . . . . . .. . .

Total Primary Government long-term debt. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ go"",_

New York State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 7% of its five-year
valuation. The current debt-limitation for the County is $2,962,433 which is only 18.4% exhausted by the County's outstanding
general obligation debt of$545,873 (which includes a $97,150 bond guaranty to ECMCC).

The County's current bond ratings, as assigned by rating agencies, are as follows: Moody's: A2 (stable outlook); Fitch; A (stable
outlook); and Standard & Poor's; BBB+ (stable outlook). Moody's and Fitch's ratings reflect recalibrations of their municipal
ratings to their global rating scales in April 2010. Standard & Poor's rating has been in effect since July 2008 and was affirmed
in July 2010.

Additional information on the County's long-term debt can be found in Note XII of this report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In February 2011, the County issued $650 of general obligation serial bonds to refund outstanding bonds.

The County issued $535 of general obligation bonds on May 5, 2011 in part to refinance long-term bond anticipation notes
outstanding at December 31, 2010.

In July 2010, the ETCC Board of Directors initiated the dissolution of ETCC, which is scheduled to be completed by July 31,
2011.

See Note XVIII for more information regarding these subsequent events.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances for all those with an interest in the
government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report, or requests for additional financial
information, should be addressed to the Erie County Office of the Comptroller, 95 Franklin Street Room 1100, Buffalo, New
York 14202.
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------------------------------ COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK' 13

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These basic financial statements include the financial statements and related notes of the
reporting entity that are essential to fair presentation of financial position and results of

operations. The reporting entity includes the primary government and its discretely
presented component units.
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14 . COUNTY OF ERIE, NEWYORK~--------,----------------------

Statement of Net Assets
December 31,2010
(dollars in thousands)

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 170,352 < 36,149 $ 206,501•
Investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,206 20,206
Restricted cash and cash equivalents . . . . . .
Receivables (net of allowances) .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 355,932 9,660 365,592
Due from primary government . . . . .
Due from component unit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,036 1,490 3,526
Internal balances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,678 (1,563) 1,115
Inventories . . . . . . . .
Prepaid items . . . . . ................. .......... . 9,142 1 9,143
Other assets .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ........... 6,484 6,484
Capital assets:

Land, rare booksand construction in progress .... . . . . . . 110,694 1,251 111,945
Other capital assets, net of depreciation .. . . . . . . . - . . . . 704,337 13,170 717,507

Total assets ..................................... 1,381,861 60,158 1,442,019

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ........... . 66,268 3,226 69,494
Accrued liabilities .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72,176 5,944 78,120
Due to component unit . . . . . . . ............ ' ........... 2,258 2,258
Due to primarygovernment .. .
Unearned revenue . . . . . . . . . . ....................... . 54,367 8,116 62,483
Short-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70,071 70,071
Long-term liabilities:

Due withinone year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .......... 75,413 2,158 77,571
Due in more than one year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,022,575 44,923 1,067,498

Total liabilities ....................... . . . . . . . . . . . , 1,363,128 64,367 1,427,495

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT):
Investedin capital assets, net of related debt .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 374,188 14,421 388,609
Restricted for:

Capital projects ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,277 3,277
Debt service . . . . . . . . . . . . - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,723 1,723
Public safety . . . . . . . . . . . . . ......................... 1,122 1,122
Other purposes .... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 109 109

Unrestricted (deficit) .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . _..... (361,686) (18,630) (380,316)

Total net assets (deficit) ................. . . . . . . . . . . $ 18,733 $ (4,209) s 14,524

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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COMPONENT UNITS

Llbrarv ECMCC Other

$ 9,824 s 16,542 $ 2,242
73,743 1,664

135,185
1,840 89,441 204

411 1,847

44
664 4,972 3

3,082 1,443

11,094 13,184
6,823 82,547 511

30,6~ 420,543 6,111

531 25,113 139
670 51,726 1,475

3,526
689 18,598

903 2,250
12,008 205,879

14,801 307,092 1,614

17,917 14,855 511

1,010
10,294

12,062 2,021
(2,062) 75,230 1,965

$ 15,855 $ 113,451 s 4,497

Comm. 21D-2 
Page 19 of 99
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Statement of Activities
For the year ended December 31,2010
(dollars in thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Functions i Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General govemment .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 423,161 $ 26,794 $ 22,803 $ 4,377
Publicsafety . . . . . . . . . ............. 141,543 5,578 6,949
Health . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ............. 82,855 2,470 62,198
Transportation . . _. . . . . . . . . . .. . .......... 72,615 7,518 21,172
Economicassistance and opportunity . . . . . . . . . . 579,927 29,008 296,114
Cultureand recreation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24,567 1,552 1,073
Education .... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75,529 95 41,275 169
Home and community service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53,186 9,311 13,652
Interestand fiscalcharges ..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 37,833 4,447

Total governmental activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,491,216 74,808 456,029 25,718

Business-type activities:
College (August 31,2010) .................... 132,556 31,144 7,412
Utilities aggregation .... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28,587 28,805

Total business-type activities .. . . . . . . . . . . . 161,143 59,949 7,412

Total primary government . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . s 1,652,359 $ 134,757 $ 463,441 $ 25,718

Component units:
Library .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 30,395 $ 1,075 $ 2,734 $
ECMCC ...................... ........... 439,938 363,107 1,277 502
Other component units .. . . . . . . . . _.... _...... 4,733 3,203 1,930 -

Total component units ...... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 475,066 $ 367,385 $ 5,941 $ 502

General revenues:
Property taxes levied for mall, sewer, and general purposes .. .
Property taxes levied for library .
Sales and use taxes .
Transfer taxes .
Unrestricted state and local appropriations .
Federal and state student financial aid .
Interest earnings not restricted to specific programs , .
Unrestricted interest earnings .
Miscellaneous _ .
Gain on sale of capital assets .

Total general revenues .
Transfers _ .

Total general revenues and transfers .

Change in net assets ,
Net assets (deficit) ~ beginning .

Net assets (deficit) - ending .

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2010
(dollars in thousands)

Other Total
ECFSA Governmental Governmental

General General Funds Funds
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 22,013 $ 841 $ 147,498 s 170,352
Investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . ........... 20,206 20,206
Receivables (net of allowances)

Real property taxes, interest, penalties
and liens. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66,746 1,352 68,098

Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,227 31,003 37,230
Due from otherfunds . . . . . _.............. 80,313 45,000 16,656 141,969
Due from component unit .. . . . . . . . . ..... 916 1,120 2,036
Due from othergovernments . . . . . ........ . 170,351 47,969 30,882 249,202
Prepaid items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,356 2,786 9,142
Loan receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,402 1,402

Total assets ................. o •••• • • , $ 354,324 s 93,810 $ 251,503 $ 699,637

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 26,741 $ 8 $ 14,016 $ 40,765
Accrued liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40,050 28 6,747 48,825
Due to other funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 45,200 47,659 46,432 139,291
Due to component unit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 837 411 1,248
Due to othergovernments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,684 908 23,592
Retained percentages payable ... . . . . . . . . . 9 1,902 1,911
Unearned revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25,765 28,602 54,367
Deferred revenue.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47,725 8 47,733
Short-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,000 44,815 5,256 70,071

Total liabilities , . , , , , ... , , , .. , , , , . , , .. 229,011 92,921 103,871 425,803

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances. . . . .. . ........... ... 3,862 30,879 34,741
Debt service. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28,288 28,288
Loan receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,402 1,402
Prepaid items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . '" 6,356 2,451 8,807
E-911 systemcosts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,122 1,122
Handicapped parking. ............. 109 109
Law enforcement. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 124 124

Unreserved, reported in:
General fund

Designated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46,556 46,556
Undesignated .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66,904 66,904

Special revenuefunds
Designated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,476 8,476
Undesignated ...................... 889 12,321 13,210

Capital projects fund
Designated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 669 689
Undesignated ................... 65,426 65,426

Total fund balances .. , , , , .. , , , , . , , , , , . 125,313 889 147,632 273,834

Total liabilities and
fund balances ...................... $ 354,324 $ 93,810 $ 251,503 s 699,637

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2010
(dollars in thousands)

Governmental
Activities

Total fund balances - governmental funds .

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources and are not reported as revenues in the funds .

ECFSA interest receivable is recognized when earned in the
government-wide financial statements, but in the fund financial
income is accrued only if it will be received within sixty days of
year-end .

ECFSA premium on BAN issuance is not due and payable in the current
period and therefore is not reported in the funds .

Costs associated with the issuance of bonds are capitalized in the
statement of net assets and are expensed in the governmental
funds in the year the bonds are issued .

Due to a component unit was deemed to be not due and payable in
the current period and therefore not reported in the funds.....

Certain current liabilities and Icnq-term liabilities, including bonds
payable, are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds:

Accrued bond interest .
Compensated absences .
Judgments and claims .
Other postemployrnent benefits (OPES).
Unamortized bond premiums .
Unamortized bond discounts .
Unamortized deferred amounts on refundings .
Long-term bond anticipation notes .
Bonds payable .

Total net assets - governmental activities .

See accompanying notes to the financial statements,

$

s

273,834

815,031

47,733

2,670

(224)

5,376

(1,010)

(26,689)
(22,311 )
(57,728)

(184,662)
(34,745)
11,422
27,390

(501)
(836,853)

18,733
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the year ended December 31, 2010

(dollars in thousands)

General
ECFSA
General

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds
REVENUES:

Real property taxes and tax items ..
Sales and use taxes .
Transfertaxes .
Intergovernmental .
Interfund revenues .
Departmental .
Interest .
Miscellaneous .

Total revenues .

$ 219,650
287,104

383,689
248

63,349
1,490

10,696

966,226

$
371,226

2,224

34

373,484

$ 33,862
3,603
7,246

92,571
122

11,365
1,521
2,488

152,778

s 253,512
661,933

7,246
478,484

370
74,714

3,045
13,184

1,492,488

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General governmentsupport .
Publicsafety .
Health . . _ .
Transportation .
Economicassistanceand opportunity.
Cultureand recreation .
Education .
Home and community service .

Capitaloutlay _..
Debt service:

Principal retirement _..
Interestand fiscalcharges .

Total expenditures .

(Deficiency) excess of revenues
over expenditures .

353,033
124,217

71,185
21,065

558,136
20,889
73,799

2,225

1,224,549

(258,323)

438

573

2,831

3,842

369,642

8,222
10,171
10,905
22,844
18,488

90
42,099
93,066

47,936
35,549

289,370

(136,592)

361,693
134,388

82,090
43,909

576,624
21,462
73,889
44,324
93,066

47,936
38,380

1,517,761

(25,273)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuanceof generalobligation debt ..
Premium on BAN issuance .
Premium on bond issuance .
Issuanceof refunding bonds .
Payments to refunded bond escrow .
Sale of property .
Transfers in _.
Transfersout .

449
370,754
(89,405)

374

1,595
(372,271)

249,598

27,301
120

(99,432)
11

363,784
(291,886)

249,598
374

27,301
120

(99,432)
460

736,133
(753,562)

281,798

23,475
101,838

135,719
138,115

273,834

160,992

s

249,496

112,904
34,728

147,632889 ";$:;,,,.=~;,;,;;;==

(660)
1,549

(370,302)

$.... "".... 125,313

Total other financing
sources (uses) .

Net change in fund balances .
Fund balances at beginning of year .

Fund balances at end of year. . . . ,,;;.===.;;;;;;;;~=

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the year ended December 31, 2010
(dollars in thousands)

Governmental
Activities

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds .

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
and depreciated. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation
in the current period.

Capital outlays, net of disposals of $191 .
Depreciation .

Net adjustment ...

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are reported as deferred revenue in the funds.

Real property taxes , ' .
Deferred revenue-miscellaneous.

Net adjustment ..... '

Revenues of the ECFSA in the statement of activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds ..

Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in the governmental funds and thus
contribute to-the change in fund balance. In the statement of net assets, however,
issuing debt increases long-term debt and does not affect the statement of activities.
Similarly, repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds
and thus contributes to the change in fund balance. In the statement of net assets,
however, payment of debt reduces the long-term debt liability and does not affect the
statement of activities.

Principal retirement.
Bonds issued .
Proceeds of refunding_ bonds.
Long-term bond anticipation notes ...
Payments to refunded bond escrow, .
Premium on bond issuance .
Amortization of fiscal charges .

Net adjustment .

Certain expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds.

Due to component unit .
Interest on bonds .
Compensated absences , .
Retirement _ .
Judgments and claims (Long term change only) .
Amortization of bond issuance costs .
ECFSA BAN premium .
Other postemployment benefits (OPEB) .

Net adjustment .

Change in net assets of governmental activities .

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

$ 75,390
(50,727)

4,237
(35)

47,936
(252,329)

(120)
2,731

99,432
(27,301)

3,206

38
(4,732)
1,343
9,570

(2,708)
1,321

378
(54,196)

$

$

135,719

24,663

4,202

1,831

(126,445)

(48,986)

(9,016)
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General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Basis of Accounting)
For the year ended December 31, 2010
(dollars in thousands)

variance with

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

Budgetary
Actual

Final Budget­
Positive

(Negalive)
REVENUES:

Real property taxes and tax items.
Sales and use taxes .
Intergovernmental .
Interfund revenue .
Departmental . .
Interest .
Miscellaneous . .

$ 218,743
644,050
388,285

275
61,046

1,243
1,349

$ 219,885
278,853
393,859

275
61,406

1,210
1,367

$ 219,650
287,104
383,689

248
63,349

1,490
10,696

$ (235)
8,251

(10,170)
(27)

1,943
280

9,329

Total revenues , 1,314,991 956,855 966,226 9,371

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government support . .
Publicsafety .
Health .
Transportation .
Economic assistance and opportunity .
Culture and recreation .
Education .
Home and community service . .

Debt servlce:
Interestand fiscalcharges .

Total expenditures .

346,660
118,140

74,867
20,471

574,433
18,667
75,366

2,335

1,595

1,232,534

366,520
126,219

77,030
21,065

567,567
22,803
74,639
2,462

1,258,305

352,351
124,070

70,783
21,065

558,616
20,783
73,799

2,222

1,223,689

14,169
2,149
6,247

8,951
2,020

840
240

34,616

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures . 82,457 (301,450) (257,463) 43,987

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Sale of property .
Transfers in .
Transfers out _ .

Total other financing sources (uses) .

152

(82,609)

(82,457)

152
370,754
(90,748)

280,158

449
370,754
(89,405)

281,798

297

1,343

1,640

45,627
24,335 =$=========(21,292) $

=
s

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing
uses ==$==================

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2010
(dollars in thousands)

Business ~ Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Major Non-Major
Fund Fund

Utilities
College Aggregation

Augus131,2010 Fund Total
ASSETS:

Current Assets:
Cash ........... .................. $ 34,978 $ 1,171 $ 36,149
Receivables (net of allowances) .......... 7,381 932 8,313
Due from other funds ....... ........... 558 435 993
Due from component unit .......... 1,490 1,490
Due from other governments ............. 1,347 1,347
Prepaid items ........................ 1 1

Total current assets .............. 42,917 5,376 48,293

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets, net of depreciation:

Construction in progress .............. 1,251 1,251
Other capital assets, net of depreciation ',' 13,170 13,170

Total noncurrent assets ........... 14,421 14,421

Total assets .................. 57,338 5,376 62,714

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable ........... ........ 1,422 1,804 3,226
Accrued liabilities ............ ........ 4,869 1,075 5,944
Due to other funds ................... 2,556 2,556
Fringe benefits payable - current ....... 2,158 2,158
Deferred revenue ..................... 8,116 8,116

Total current liabilities ............ 19,121 2,879 22,000

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Fringe benefits payable ................. 4,514 4,514
Net OPES obligation ................... 40,409 40,409

Total noncurrent liabilities ......... 44,923 44,923

Total liabilities ................. 64,044 2,879 66,923

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT):
Invested in capital assets ................. 14,421 14,421
Unrestricted (deficit), reported in:

Community College .................... (21,127) (21,127)
Nonmajor Fund ........................ 2,497 2,497

Total net assets (deficit) ......... s (6,706) $ 2,497 $ (4,209)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the year ended December 31, 2010
(dollars in thousands)

austnees . Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

College
Augus131,2010

Major Non·Major
Fund Fund

Utilities
Aggregation

Fund Total
OPERATING REVENUES:

Student tuition and fees. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $
Intergovemmental revenues and charges.
State and localcontracts .
lnterfund revenues .
Other operating revenue .

Total operating revenue ,

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Employee wages .
Employee benefits .
Scholarships .
Supplies .
Utilities and telephone .
Depreciation .

Total operating expenses .

Operating (loss) income .

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Unrestricted state and localappropriations.
Federal and state student financial aid .....
Income frominvestments .
Losson disposal of plantassets .

(Loss) gain before transfers .

Transfers in .

30,231
2,963
4,449

913

38,556

60,471
33,756
18,070
16,301

2,374
1,567

132,539

(93,983)

34,071
38,392

146
(17)

(21,391)

17,429

s

9,036
19,769

28,805

47
17

28,523

28,587

218

218

$ 30,231
2,963
4,449
9,036

20,682

67,361

60,518
33,773
18,070
16,301
30,897
1,567

161,126

(93,765)

34,071
38,392

146
(17)

(21,173)

17,429

Change in net assets .
Total net assets (deficit) - beginning .

Total net assets (deficit) • ending . $

(3,962)
(2,744)

(6,706) s

218
2,279

2,497 s

(3,744)
(465)

(4,209)

See accompanying notes to the financiai statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the year ended December 31, 2010
(dollars in thousands)

Business - Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

College
Augus131,2010

Major NOFi-f,1ajor
Fund Fund

Utilities
Aggregation

Fund
Total
Funds

36,149

86,463

17,429
33,084

1,023
34,927

4,433
31,716

51,649
(82,410)
(47,128)
(18,069)

6,135
8,920
2,103

146

(3,376)

(78,800)

s

642

642
529

8,920

1,171

20,228 $
(63)

(28,443)

31,421 $
(82,347)
(18,685)
(18,069)

6,135

~

(79,442)

17,429
33,084

1,023
34,927

~

(3,376)

146

3,791
31,187

..... "'78 s

Net increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year .

Cash, end of year '. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ .,.,.,~

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receiptsfrom students and utility customers. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $
Payments to employeesfor services . . . . . . . . . .. . .
Payments to suppliers for goodsand services. . .. . .
Payments forscholarships .
Federal, state and local grants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .
Intemal activity - paymentsfrom otherfunds. . . . .
Other operating revenues .

Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities .

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Countycontribution .
State appropriations .
Municipal chargebacks . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .
Federal andstatestudent financial aid grants. . . . . . . .

Net cash provided by non-capital
financing activities .

CASH FLOWS USED IN CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of capitalassets .

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received .

(Continued)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the year ended December 31, 2010
(dollars in thousands)

Business - Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Majoi
Fund

Ncn-Majcr
Fund

87
(96)
(21)
934

13,050 -
$ (79,442) $

College
August 31, 2010

642 $
==

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
(USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES,
Operating loss .
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) incometo net cash

used by operating activities:
Depreciation expense

Increase (decrease) in assets:
Receivables, net .
Due from other funds .
Due fromcomponent unit .
Due from other governments . .
Prepaid items .

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts and other payables ..
Due to other funds .
Accrued expenses .
Deferred revenue .
Other long-term liabilities . . . . .

Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities .

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

s (93,983)

1,567

(907)
(73)

s

Utilities
Aggregation

Fund

218 $

(225)
92
72

520
(1)

(945)

911

Total
Funds

(93,765)

1,567

(1,132)
19
72

520
(1)

(858)
(96)
890
934

13,050

(78,800)

(Concluded)
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Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Fund
December 31,2010
(dollars in thousands)

Agency
Fund

65,132

698
19

.. " .... ,. 65,849

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents. $
Receivables:

Other receivables . . . .
Bondsand securities held in custody. . _

Total assets, .... , .... , . , . =-===;;;;==
. . . . . . . . . .• 65,849

........ ,. 65,849

LIABILITIES:
Held in custody forothers. . . . . . -=.-__

Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . .;;-====~==

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the County ofErie, New York (the "County") have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") as applied to
government units. The more significant of the County's accounting policies are described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entitv

The County was established in 1821. Subject to the New York State Constitution, the County
operates pursuant to its Charter and Administrative Code (the "Charter"), as well as various local
laws. Additionally, certain New York State laws govern the County to the extent that such laws are
applicable to counties operating under a charter form of government. The Charter was enacted by
local law and approved by the electorate at a general election held in November 1959. The
Administrative Code was enacted into local law in 1961. The County Legislature is the legislative
body responsible for overall operations, the County Executive serves as chiefexecutive officer, and
the County Comptroller serves as chief fiscal, accounting, reporting and auditing officer.

The County provides mandated social service programs such as Medicaid, Temporary Assistance for
Needy Families and Safety Net. The County also provides services and facilities in the areas of
culture, recreation, police, libraries, youth, health, senior services, roads, and sanitary sewerage.
These general governmental programs and services are financed by various taxes, state and federal
aid, and departmental revenue (which are primarily comprised of service fees and various types of
program-related charges). Additionally, the County operates the Erie Community College ("the
College").

The financial reporting entity includes the County (the "primary government") and its significant
component units. A component unit is either a legally separate organization for which the elected
officials of a primary government are financially accountable, or another organization for which the
nature and significance of its relationship with a primary government is such that exclusion would
cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

1. DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

Financial data of the County's component units that are not part ofthe primary government
is reported in the component units columns in the government-wide financial statements, to
emphasize that these component units are legally separate from the County. The aggregate
discretely presented component units are not simply an extension ofthe primary government
(e.g. substantially different governing body, and services are provided to the general public).
These discretely present component units include the following:

The Buffalo andErie County Public Librmy (the "Library"), formed through a consolidation
of several public and private libraries, was established by the County and chartered by the
State University Board ofRegents in 1953. It is a separate and distinct legal corporation that
receives an annual budgetary contribution from the County. Library operations are governed
by a board of trustees who are appointed by the County Legislature. Bonds and notes for
Library capital costs are issued by the County and are obligations ofthe County. Title to real
and personal property acquired with County funds vests with the County. The library is
included as a component unit ofthe County in the financial statements, based on the fact that

Comm. 21D-2 
Page 32 of 99



----------------------------- COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK' 29

it is a legally separate entity for which the County is financially accountable. The Library
does not issue separate financial statements.

Erie County Medical Center Corporation ("ECMCC") is a public benefit corporation
created in 2003 for the purpose ofacquiring and operating the health facilities ofthe County,
Effective January 1, 2004 (the "Transfer Date"), a transaction was executed which
.transferred ownership ofthe capital assets, equipment, inventories and certain other assets to
ECMCC in exchange for a payment of $85,000,000 from ECMCC to the County.
Concurrent with the transaction, $101,375,000 of ECMCC bonds were issued, which are
guaranteed bytheCounty. Pursuant to consent decreesenteredintobetween theCountyand
ECMCC, the County is committed to providing ongoing operating and capital support to
ECMCC. The following component units are included within ECMCC:

Research for Health in Erie County. Inc. - Research for Health in Erie County, Inc.
("RHEC") is a nonprofit organization dedicated to developing and increasing the
facilities ofthe public health institutions, agencies, and departments ofthe County.
Additionally, RHEC is committed to provide more extensive conduct ofstudies and
research into the causes, nature, and treatment ofdiseases, disorders, and defects of
particular importance to the public health. RHEC's support comes primarily from
various grants from federal, state, and other agencies. The financial statements of
RHEC have been prepared on the accrual basis ofaccounting. The annual financial
report can be obtained by writing Grant Administration, Research for Health in Erie
County, Inc., 462 Grider Street, Buffalo, NY 14215.

ECMC Lifeline Foundation. Inc. - ECMC Lifeline Foundation, Inc. (the
"Foundation") is a nonprofit organization exempt from federal income taxes under
Section 501(c)(3) ofthe Internal Revenue Code. The Foundation was formed for the
purpose of supporting hospital programs generated both by the Foundation and the
Erie County Medical Center. The annual financial report can be obtained by writing
Director, ECMC Lifeline Foundation, Inc., 462 Grider Street, Buffalo, NY 14215.

The Grider Initiative. Inc. - The Grider Initiative, Inc. (the "Physician Endowment")
is a nonprofit organization exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501
(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Physician Endowment was formed in
2009, and funded in 2010, for the purpose of recruiting physicians who shall
practice on the Grider Street campus of the Corporation. The entity was funded
with an initial transfer of $10,000 from the Corporation. Earnings from the
investment of the initial transfer may be used only for physician recruitment and
reasonable and necessary expenses of the entity. The annual financial report can be
obtained by writing to: Chair, The Grider Initiative, Inc. 424 Main Street, Suite
2000, Buffalo, NY 14202.

ECMCC is considered to be a component unit of the County and is discretely presented
based on the fact that it is a legally separate entity for which the County is financially
accountable. Separate financial statements for ECMCC can be obtained from ECMCC, 462
Grider St, Buffalo, New York 14215.

Comm. 21D-2 
Page 33 of 99



30 • Notes to the Financial Statements --------------------------------

Other Discretely Presented Component Units:

The Auxiliaiy Services Corporation ofErie Community College, Inc, (the "ECC Auxiliary
Corporation"), and the Erie Community College Foundation, Inc. (the "ECC Foundation")
are both included as discretely presented component units of the County's primary
government pursuant to Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement
No, 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units based on the fact
that they are legally separate entities for which the College and County are fmancially
accountable. They receive or hold economic resources that are significant to and can be
accessed by the College that are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of its
constituents (students).

The purpose of the ECC Auxiliary Corporation, a New York non-profit corporation, is to
promote and cultivate educational and social relations through the operation ofbookstores,
on-campus dining services, vending facilities, childcare, and student centers for the
convenience of the students, faculty and staff of the College. The ECC Auxiliary
Corporation is funded through sales ofmerchandise and food, Federal and State grants, and
other fees. Separate financial statements can be obtained from the Auxiliary Services
Corporation of Erie Community College, Inc., Executive Director, 6205 Main Street,
Williamsville, NY 14221.

The ECC Foundation is a New York State nonprofit corporation established to support the
College, Its purpose is to raise, receive, and administer all private gifts and program services
for the College, its programs and its students. Separate financial statements can be obtained
from Erie Community College Foundation, Inc., Executive Director, 4196 Abbott Road,
Orchard Park, NY 14127,

The Buffalo and Erie County Industrial LandDevelopment Corporation, Inc., ("ILDC') is a
legally separate entity ofwhich the County, acting by and through the County Executive, is
the sole member. It is discretely presented in the County's financial statements because the
County is fmancially accountable for it.

A voting majority ofthe board members are appointed by, and can be removed at will by, the
County, The ILDC is managed by the board.

In 2009, ILDC by-laws and organizing documents were changed and specific activities first
became under the direct governance of Erie County. These changes allow the ILDC to
provide tax-exempt financing to not-for-profit organizations, Such debt of the ILDC can
never be the debt ofErie County or any political subdivision thereof and can only be paid out
ofspecific revenues and receipts ofthe ILDC. The ILDC provides no services to the County.
Separate financial statements can be obtained from Buffalo Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation Inc., Chief Operating Officer, 275 Oak Street, Buffalo, NY
14203.

2. BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS

Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority ("ECFSA") is included as a blended component unit
ofthe County's primary government pursuant to GASB Statement No. 39 because exclusion
would be misleading. The ECFSA was created to monitor and oversee the fmances of the
County. Agencies and departments by the ECFSA's activities include all the County's
departments and sewer districts, the College and the Library. It reports using the
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governmental model and its general fund is reported as part ofthe County's special revenue
funds.

The ECFSA is a corporate governmental agency and instrumentality of the State of New
York (the "State") constituting a public benefit corporation created by the Erie County Fiscal
Stability Authority Act, Chapter 182 of the Laws of2005, as supplemented by Chapter 183
of the Laws of2005 (the "Act"). The Act became effective July 12, 2005.

The ECFSA is governed by seven directors, each appointed by the Governor, including one
each appointed upon the recommendation ofthe Majority Leader of the State Senate, the
Speaker of the Assembly and the State Comptroller. The Governor also designates the
chairperson and vice-chairperson from among the directors.

The ECFSA has power under the Act to monitor and oversee the finances of Erie County,
and upon declaration of a "Control Period" as defined in the Act, additional oversight
authority. The ECFSA is also empowered to issue its bonds and notes for various County
purposes, defined in the Act as "Financeable Costs."

On November 3, 2006, the Authority imposed a control period on the County in accordance
with Section 3595(1)(e) ofNew York Public Authorities Law through resolution 06-49. The
resolution empowered the ECFSA to operate with its maximum authorized compliment of
control and oversight powers over County finances. During a control period all County
contracts of$50,000 or more and filling ofany positions are subjectto ECFSA approval and
ECFSA has the power to approve or reject all proposed County borrowings and the County
may not borrow without formal ECFSA approval. In addition, the ECFSA has the right to
freeze wages, although it has not elected to exercise that right. On June 2, 2009, the ECFSA
revoked the control period and reverted to an advisory status with limited control and
oversight powers over County finances,

During 2010, the ECFSA issued serial bonds and a bond anticipation note that were used to
purchase mirror bonds and a revenue anticipation that were issued by the County.

Revenues of the ECFSA consist ofsales tax revenues, defined as net collections from sales
and compensating use taxes, penalties and interest authorized by the State and imposed by
the County on the sales and use of tangible personal property and services in the County
("Sales Tax Revenues"), and investment earnings on money and investments on deposit in
various ECFSA accounts. Sales Tax Revenues collected by the State Comptroller for transfer
to the ECFSA are not subject to appropriation by the State or County. Revenues of the
ECFSA that are not required to pay debt service, operating expenses and other costs of the
ECFSA are payable to the County as frequently as practicable. Separate financial statements
for ECFSA can be obtained from the Erie County Fiscal Stability Authority, 295 Main
Street, Room 946, Buffalo, New York, 14203.

Erie Tobacco Asset Securitization Coporation ("ETASC") is a special purpose local
development corporation organized under the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law ofthe State of
New York and is an instrumentality of, but separate and apart from the County. ETASC was
incorporated, for the sole purpose of issuing tobacco settlement asset backed bonds in order
to provide funds to purchase from the County all of the County's right, title, and interest in
annual payments to be received in settlement ofcertain smoking-related litigation. Although
legally separate and independent of Erie County, ETASC is considered an affiliated
organization under GASB Statement No. 39 and reported as a component unit ofthe County
for financial reporting purposes and, accordingly, is included in the County's financial
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statements. Separate financial statements for ETASC can be obtained from the Erie Tobacco
Asset Securitization Corporation, Treasurer, 95 Franklin Street, Room 1600, Buffalo, New
York, 14202.

Erie Tax Certificate Corporation ("ETCC") is a special purpose local development
corporation organized under the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of the State ofNew York
and is an instrumentality of, but separate and apart from the County. The ETCC was created
for the sole purpose ofpurchasing certain tax liens owned by the County and collecting the
proceeds that may be received upon redemption of the tax liens or the sale of real property
against which a tax lien exists. Aithough legally separate andindependent of Erie County,
ETCC is considered an affiliated organization under GASB Statement No. 39 andreported
as a component unit of the County for County financial reporting purposes. Separate
financial statements for ETCC can be obtained from the Erie Tax Certificate Corporation,
President, 95 Franklin Street, Room 100, Buffalo, New York 14202.

3. RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

County elected officials nominate and confirm the three-member board of the Erie County
Water Authority, ("Water Authority") and also appoint a voting majority ofthe board ofthe
Buffalo Convention Center Management Corporation ("BCCMC"). The County's
accountability for these legally separate organizations does not extend beyond making the
board appointments. Specifically, the County carmot impose its will on any of these
organizations. In addition, in the case of the Water Authority, no financial operating
assistance is provided to, nor is the County liable for, any debt issued by this public benefit
corporation. In regard to the not-for-profit BCCMC, the entity and the County are parties to
an exchange transaction under which the BCCMC is responsible for operating and managing
the area's convention center. These related organizations are not component units of the
County and do not meet the basic criteria for inclusion in the County reporting entity.

4. JOINT VENTURE

The County is a participant in the Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation
("OTB"), a public benefit corporation established under New York State Racing, Pari­
Mutuel Wagering and Breeding Law. The OTB conducts within the region a system ofoff­
track pari-mutuel betting on horse races, and distributes net revenues to the participants in
accordance with a predetermined formula. Separate financial data for this joint venture has
been excluded from the financial statements, consistent with GAAP. Additional information
about this joint venture is presented in Note XVII.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all ofthe nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. Some amounts reported as interfund activity have been eliminated from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from the
legally separate component units for which the primary government is fmancially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses ofa given function
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who
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purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function,
and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements
of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide fmancial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
colunms in the fund fmancial statements.

c. Measurement Focus,-Basis of Accounting- and Financial Statement Presentation

Measurement focus is the determination of what is expressed in reporting an entity's fmancial
performance and position, (i.e., expenditures or expenses). A particular measurement focus is
accomplished both by considering what resources will be measured and the basis ofaccounting.

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues, expenditures/expenses, and the related assets and
liabilities are recognized in the accounts and reported in the fmancial statements. Basis ofaccounting
relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus.

Accrual Basis - Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Modified Accrual Basis - Under this basis ofaccounting, revenues are recognized as soon as they are
both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to he available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days ofthe end
ofthe current fiscal period (60-day rule). Revenues from federal, state, or other grants designated for
specific County expenditure are recognized when the related expenditures are incurred.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due and expenditures for inventory-type
items and for prepayments (except retirement) are recognized at the time of the disbursements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met and are measurable.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current fmancial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis ofaccounting. Property taxes, sales and use taxes,
state and federal aid and various grant program revenues associated with the current fiscal period are
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash
is received by the government, subject to the 60-·dayrule noted above.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - the principal operating fund that includes all operations not required to be
recorded in other funds.
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ECFSA General Fund - used to account for all ofthe operations ofthe ECFSA, included as
a blended component unit. This fund accounts for sales tax revenues received by ECFSA and
for general operating expenditures of ECFSA.

The County reports the following major proprietary fund:

Erie Community College - resources received and used for community college purposes are
accounted for through the College. The College is not a legally separate entity from the
County. A fiscal yearendingAugust31 is mandated byNew YorkStatelaw for the College.
Accordingly, financial information for the College is presented as ofandforthe fiscal year
then ended.

The College does not account for certain capital projects, certain capital assets or certain
indebtedness. These are direct functions of the County and are reported within the
govermnental activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.

Additional information as excerpted from the College's financial statements is as follows:

The County Executive and the County Legislature approve the College annual budget, with
the County providing funding for one-half and approximately one-fifth of capital and
operating costs, respectively.

Equipment of the College has been included in the business-type activities column in the
statement of net assets. This equipment is recorded at cost or estimated historical cost.
Donated assets are stated at estimated fair value as of the date received.

Additionally, the County reports the following fiduciary fund type that is used to account for assets
held by the County in a custodial capacity:

Agency Fund - used to account for money and property received and held in the capacity of
custodian or agent. The Agency Fund is custodial in nature and does not involve
measurement of results of operations.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary FundAccounting. Private­
sector standards ofaccounting and financial reporting issued prior to December I, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that
those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of GASB. Govermnents also have the
option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and
enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The County has elected not to follow subsequent
private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are interfund services provided and used such as
Utilities Aggregation Fund billings to other funds. Eliminations of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: (I) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and
contributions. General revenues are those that cannot be associated directly with program activities.
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for the
proprietary funds include the cost ofsales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Deposits and Investments

All highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months or less are considered to
be cash equivalents. Investments are stated at fair value, the amount at which a financial instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.

E. Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors and the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System
reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both
governrnent-wide and fund fmancial statements.

F. Capital Assets

All capital assets which are acquired or constructed for general governrnental purposes are reported
as expenditures in the fund that finances the asset acquisition and are accounted for and reported in
the governrnent-wide fmancial statements as capital assets, ifthey meet the County's capitalization
criteria. These statements also contain the County's infrastructure elements that are required to be
capitalized under GAAP. Infrastructure assets include public domain assets such as roads, bridges,
and sewer systems. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of
donation. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. The cost ofnormal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value ofthe asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Equipment with an initial individual cost equal to or
greater than $10,000 and an estimated useful life ofthree or more years is capitalized. All purchases
oflibrary books are capitalized because there is no minimum capitalization threshold. Property, plant,
and equipment ofthe primary governrnent, as well as the component unit, are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Description
Improvements Other Than Buildings
BUildings and Improvements
Infrastructure
Library Collections

Estimated Lives
5 - 25 years

15 - 40 years
20 - 100 years

5 - 10 years

The Buffalo and Erie County Public Library has a rare book collection that is classified as a Work of
Art and Historical Treasure for financial reporting purposes. This collection is deemed an
inexhaustible asset, and therefore, is not depreciated.

When capital assets are retired, or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in income for
the period in the governrnent-wide statements. Amortization ofcapital leases is computed using the
straight-line method over the lease term or the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is
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shorter. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; significant renewals and
betterments are capitalized.

G. Property Tax Revenue Recognition

The County-wide property tax is levied by the County Legislature effective January 1 ofthe year the
taxes are recognizable as revenue. Taxes become a lien on the related property on January 1 of the
year for which they are levied. Accordingly, property tax is only recognized as revenue in the year for
which the levy is made, and to the extent that such taxes are received within the reporting period or
60 days thereafter in the fundfinancial statements.

Delinquent property taxes not collected at year-end (excluding collections in the 60-day subsequent
period) are recorded as deferred revenue in the fund financial statements. The portion ofdelinquent
property taxes for prior years estimated to be uncollectible at December 31, 2010, amounted to
$11,619,168. This amount has been recorded as an allowance against the property taxes receivable
account.

H. Compensated Absences

Most employees are granted vacation, personal, and sick leave and eam compensatory time in varying
amounts. When they leave service, employees are entitled to payment for accumulated vacation and
unused compensatory time at various rates subject to certain maximum limitations. In addition,
depending on the applicable collective bargaining agreement, retirees may be eligible to receive a
direct cash payment for a portion ofunused sick time upon retirement.

Compensated absences for governmental fund type employees are reported as a liability and
expenditure in the government-wide financial statements. Governmentalfundsrecognize the expense
when paid. For proprietary fund type employees, the accumulation is recorded as an accrued liability
and/or other long-term obligation of the proprietary fund type.

Payment of compensated absences recorded in the government-wide financial statements is
dependent upon many factors; therefore, timing of future payment is not readily determinable.
However, management believes that sufficient resources will be made available for the payment of
compensated absences when such payments become due.

I. Insurance

The County assumes the liability for most risk including, but not limited to, property damage,
personal injury liability, medical malpractice, and workers' compensation. Asserted and incurred but
not reported claims and judgments are recorded when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or
a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Such recording is
consistent with the requirements ofGASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues ("GASB 10"). Governmental fund type estimated
current contingent loss liabilities for property damage, personal injury liability, medical malpractice,
and workers' compensation are reported within governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements.

Loss contingency liabilities arising from operations of the College are recorded in accordance with
GASB 10 by the County and are reported in full within governmental activities in the government­
wide financial statements and in the General Fund when payment is due. They are only recognized as
a College liability when invoiced from the County.
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J. Pensions

Nearly all County employees are members of various New York State retirement systems. The
County is invoiced annually by the systems for its share of the costs.

K. Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes ofreporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the following items: cash on
hand; cash in checking and time accounts; and certain short-term items maturing three months or less
fromthe date acquired; as permitted by Statestatute.

L. Restrictions

The government-wide and proprietary fund fmancial statements utilize a net assets presentation. Net
assets are categorized as invested in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted and unrestricted.

• Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This category groups all capital assets,
including infrastructure, into one component ofnet assets. Accumulated depreciation and the
outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category.

• Restricted Net Assets - This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors or laws or regulations ofother governments and restrictions imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The amount reported as restricted
for other purposes for Governmental Activities, includes $109,278 that is restricted by New
York State Law to payments related to enforcement ofHandicapped Parking Laws. In addition,
on the government-wide statement ofnet assets, ECMCC has reported $1,010,000 as net assets
restricted for capital projects based upon restrictions imposed on certain receivables from the
County by contract or legislative action.

• Unrestricted Net Assets - This category represents net assets ofthe County not restricted for any
project or other purpose.

M. Reserves and Designations

In the fund fmancial statements, reserves represent that portion offund balance that has been legally
segregated for a specific use or which cannot be appropriated for expenditure by the County at
December 31,2010, and include:

Reserved for Encumbrances - representing commitments related to
unperformed (executory) contracts for goods or services.

Reserved for Debt Service - representing resources that must be used for
principal payments that will be made in future periods.

Reserved for Loan Receivable - representing a loan to the Zoological
Society ofBuffalo for the redevelopment ofthe main animal building and a
working capital advance to the ETCC.

Reserved for Prepaid Items - representing amounts prepaid to vendors and
the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System that are
applicable to future accounting periods. The County limits reservations for
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prepaid items to the amount of fund balance otherwise available and
unreserved.

Reserved for E-911 System Costs - representing unexpended emergency
telephone system surcharge moneys that must be used to pay future system
costs.

Reserved for Handicapped Parking - representing commitments relating to
education, advocacy and increased public awareness of handicapped
parking laws.

Reserved for Law Enforcement - representing funds received from the sale
ofsurplus helicopter parts to be utilized exclusively to support and maintain
the Sheriffs Office Aviation Division.

In the fund financial statements, designations are not legally required segregations, but are segregated
for a specific purpose by the County. Accounting prescription set by the Erie County Comptroller
provides for a sunset provision of one fiscal year for all fund balance designations. Legislature
approval is required to establish and subsequently appropriate fund balance designations.

Designations at December 31, 2010 were as follows:

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures - representing available
fund balances being appropriated to meet future year's expenditure
requirements. In the General Fund and Sewer Special Revenue Funds,
$46,555,889 and $6,476,339 have been designated respectively. Within the
Tobacco Proceeds and ECMCC Capital Projects Funds, which are recorded
within other governmental funds, designated fund balance represents
tobacco proceeds to be expended on future ECMCC capital projects; this
balance is $668,745 at December 31,2010.

N. Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

During the year ended December 31, 2010 the County adopted the provisions of GASB Statement
No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Intangible Assets, and GASB Statement No. 58,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 Bankruptcies, which had no effect on the
County's financial position or result of operations.

The County also adopted GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Derivative Instruments ("GASB 53"). This pronouncement, applicable only to ETASC, addresses the
recognition, measurement, and disclosure of information regarding derivative instruments entered
into by state and local governments. As discussed in Note Xli (B), ETASC's forward purchase swap
agreement was deemed to be an effective hedge at December 31, 2010, requiring changes in the fair
value of the hedging derivative instrument to be recognized as deferred inflows/outflows in the
statement ofnet assets. As a result ofthe implementation of this pronouncement, ETASC recorded
an asset with an offsetting liability of $1,108,170, which are presented within other assets and
accrued liabilities, reapectively, in the accompanying statement of net assets.
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O. Future Impacts of Accounting Pronouncements

The County has not completed the process of evaluating the impact that will result from adopting
GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and
GASB StatementNo. 59, Financial Instruments Omnibus, which are effective for the year ending
December 31, 2011; GASB Statement No. 57, OPEB Measurements by AgentEmployers andAgent
Multiple-Employer Plans, GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting andFinancialReportingfor Service
Concession Arrangements, and GASB Statement No. 62, Codification ofAccounting andFinancial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AlCPA Pronouncements,
which are effective for the year ending December 31, 2012; and GASB Statement No. 61, The
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an amendment ofGASB Statements 1'10. 14 and }.7\10. 34, which
is effective for the year ending December 31,2013. The County is therefore unable to disclose the
impact that adopting GASB Statements No. 54, 57, 59, 60, 61 and 62 will have on its financial
position and results of operations when such statements are adopted.

II - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the fmancial
statements:

1. In accordance with the County Charter and Administrative Code, no later than October 15,
the County Executive submits a tentative operating and capital budget which details
proposed expenditures and the proposed means offmancing to the Erie County Legislature
for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The College budget is not included
in the County Executive's tentative budget, since it is separately adopted during the first
County legislative meeting in July for the fiscal year commencing September 1.

2. After public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments, the County Legislature
(governing board) adopts the budget no later than the second Tuesday in December.

3. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted and employed for control ofthe General Fund; the
Road, Sewer, Downtown Mall, E-911, and Emergency Response Special Revenue Funds;
the Utilities Aggregation Enterprise Fund; and the Debt Service Fund, minimally detailed to
the department, account and selected line item level. The Emergency Response Special
Revenue Fund was established to account for revenues received from the Federal Emergency
Management Agency and expenditures associated with the on-going clean up of major
damage from a storm that occurred in October 2006. These budgets are adopted on a basis
consistent with GAAP, except that encumbrances are reported as budgetary expenditures in
the year of incurrence of commitment to purchase, in the General Fund, the enumerated
Special Revenue Funds and the Debt Service Fund. All unencumbered appropriations lapse
at the end of the fiscal year. Budgetary comparisons presented in this report are on the
budgetary basis and represent the budget as modified. Annual appropriated budgets are not
employed for the Grants and Community Development Special Funds. A reconciliation to
convert GAAP basis data to the budgetary basis is provided below.

4. Capital Projects funds are subject to project budgets determined primarily by the bonding
authorizations used to fund a particular project rather than armual budgetary appropriations.
These budgets do not lapse at year-end; rather, they lapse upon termination ofthe project.

5. The County Executive is authorized to make budget transfers within the same administrative
unit up to a cumulative total of $10,000 between accounts or line items. Any proposed
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transfer which would result in an increase exceeding $10,000 in anyone line item in the
budget, as adopted during the fiscal year or would affect any salary rate or salary total, would
need prior approval by resolution of the County Legislature. In no instance shall a transfer
be made from appropriations for debt service, and no appropriations may be reduced below
any amount which is required by law to be appropriated.

6. Expenditures within the General, Special Revenue, Utilities Aggregation Enterprise, and the
Debt Service Funds may not legally exceed the amount appropriated for such accounts or
line items within a department. During the year, numerous supplementary appropriations
were necessary.

Individual governmental fund comparisons ofbudgetary and actual data at the legal level of
control established by the adopted budget (i.e., minimally the department, account and
selected line item level) are not presented in this report for those funds with annual
appropriated budgets due to the excessive detail involved. However, a separate budgetary
comparison report is available which contains this information.

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of moneys are recorded for budgetary control purposes to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriations, is employed in all County funds except Enterprise and the Fiduciary Fund.
Outstanding encumbrances at year end, except for grant-related commitments that are not reported in
the financial statements, are presented for GAAPreporting purposes as reservations offund balances,
and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the
subsequent year.

The County reports its budgetary status with the actual data including encumbrances as charges
against budgeted appropriations. Following is a reconciliation ofthe budgetary basis (i.e. non-GAAP)
and the GAAP basis operating results (dollars in thousands):

General Fund
Excess of revenues and otherfinancing sources over

expenditures and other financing uses - GAAP basis .
Less:

Encumbrances at December 31.2010 ..
Plus:

Encumbrances at January 1, 2010 .

Excess of revenues and otherfinancing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses - basis of budgeting ..

$

$

23,475

3,862

4,722

24,335

Budget colunms presented in the accompanying financial statements reflect deficiencies ofrevenues
and other financing sources over expenditures and other financing uses. These deficiencies are caused
by the anticipated use ofprior-year' s fund balance, which had been designated for 2010 expenditures
through the budget process.

Commitments related directly to the Grants and the CommunityDevelopment Special Revenue Funds
in the amount of$9,815,774 and $1,843,060, respectively, atDecember31, 2010, are not reported on
the GAAP financial statements. Budget appropriations are not made available for these commitments
until grant revenues are recognized at the time of expenditure.
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B. Deficit Fund Balances

The Community College Proprietary Fund reported a total net assets deficit of $6,706,447 that
represents primarily the effect of the implementatiou ofGASB Statement No.45 in their 2007 fiscal
year. It is anticipated that tbis trend will continue.

III - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Primary Government, Ageney Fund and Library Component Unit

Available cash of the County is deposited and invested in accordance with the County's own written
investment guidelines which have been established by the Comptroller's Office, approved by the County
Legislature and are in compliance with provisions ofapplicable State statutes. The ECFSA and ETCC do not
have formal investment policies.

Agency Fund bank accounts are maintained at fmancial institutions where moneys of the County's other funds
are also on deposit. In addition, the Library does not maintain a separate bank account; instead, it participates
in the pooled cash ofthe County. The banks calculate and report FDIC coverage and collateral requirements
for the County's Agency Fund, the County's other funds and Library together, separately from that of the
College.

Interest Rate Risk - As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from fluctuating interest
rates, it is the County's policy to generally limit investments to 180 days or less.

Credit Risk - In compliance with New York State law, it is the County's policy to limit its investments to
obligations of the United States of America, obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of
America where the payment of principal and interest are guaranteed by the United States of America,
obligations of the State of New York, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit issued by a bank or
trust company located in and authorized to do business in New York State and certain joint or cooperative
investment programs.

Custodial Credit Risk- For investments, this is the risk that, in the event ofthe failure ofthe counterparty, the
County will not be able to recover the value ofits investments or collateral securities that are in the possession
of an outside party. A margin of 2% or higher of the market value of purchased securities in repurchase
transactions must be maintained and the securities must be held by a third party in the County's name. For
deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County's deposits may not be returned to it.
Collateral is required for deposits and certificates ofdeposit in an amount equal to or greater than the amount
of all deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance. Banks can satisfy collateral requirements by
furnishing a letter ofcredit, a surety bond, or by pledging eligible securities as specified in Section 10 ofNew
York State General Municipal Law. New York State Education Law does not require collateral for college
checking accounts, unless the Board ofTrustees deems it necessary. If collateral is required, it can be in the
form ofa surety bond or obligations ofthe United States, the State, or any municipality or college ofthe State.
Certain balances for accounts held in trust are collateralized by the State ofNew York.

Concentration of Credit Risk - To promote competition in rates and service cost, and to limit the risk of
institutional failure, County deposits and investments are placed with multiple institutions. The general rule is
not to place more than $100,000,000 or 50% of the County's total investment portfolio, whichever is less, in
overnight investments with anyone institution.
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Deposits - The County deposits cash into a number ofbank accounts. Moneys must be deposited in demand or
time accounts or certificates ofdeposit issued by FDIC-insured commercial banks or trust companies located
within the State. Some ofthe County's accounts are required by various statutes and borrowing restrictions for
specific funds, while the remainder are used for County operating cash and for investment purposes.
As of December 31, 20 I0 (August 31, 2010 as to the College), bank deposits of the Primary Government,
Library, and Agency Fund were either insured or fully collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution's agent in the County's name.

Cash Equivalents - All highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months or less are
considered to be cash equivalents. Existing policies require that any underlying securities for repurchase
transactions must be only federal obligations. Such 'obligations are explicitly guaranteed by the U.S.
Government and therefore not considered to have credit risk. At December 31, 20 I0, the fair value ofmoney
market accounts was $219,920,779 which were fully collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution's agent in the County's name.

Investments - All investments are carried at fair value and are held by a third party in the County's or
ETASC's name. Investments for the Primary Government at year-end are shown below (dollars in thousands):

Municipal bonds .
Institutional liquidity funds .
Corporate commercial paper . .

Total Investments ....

Fair
Value

$ 200
427

19,579

$ 20,206

The County's investment in municipal bonds at December 31, 2010 consists of$200,000 ofGulfCoast Waste
Disposal Authority ofTexas revenue bonds maturing September 1,2025 that were rated Aaa by Moody's and
AAA by Standard and Poor's.

ETASC's investment in corporate commercial paper at December 31, 20 I0 consisted of$19,578,942 ofIntesa
Funding LLC obligations that matured and were rated A-I by Standard and Poor's ("S&P"). Rating
information for the ETASC's $427,129 investment in Blackrock Liquidity Funds was not available.

ECMCC Component Unit

The ECMCC maintains various accounts for depositing, disbursing and investing its funds. The ECMCC's
investments are made in accordance with State regulations and its investment guidelines.

Deposits andpetty cash - The ECMCC deposits cash into a number ofbank accounts. As ofDecember 31,
2010 the carrying amount of ECMCC's deposits was $16,542,000.

Cash Equivalents - All highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months or less are
considered to be cash equivalents.
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Investments - All investments are carried at fair value, and are categorized as insured or uninsured, and
collateralized by securities held by the pledging fmancial institution in the ECMCC's name. The ECMCC's
fixed income investments had an S&Pcredit quality rating of A-1+ as of December 31, 2010 (dollars in
thousands).

Money market mutual funds, bank accounts and deposits .
Marketable equity securities .
U.S. Government and Agency Obligations , .
Corporate bonds , , ' ' , .
Pooled investment fund , ' , , ,
Foundation Component Unit ' ' , ' .
RHEC Component Unit , , , .
Physician Endowment Component Unit. , ' ..

Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents ,

Investments , , , .
Restricted cash and cash equivalents , , ' , . ,

Fair
Value

$ 27,110
37,152
16,221
69,587
46,059

1,713
1,086

10,000

$ 208,928

Fair
Value

$ 73,743
135,185

$ 208,928

Other Component Units

Erie Community College Foundation, Inc.-The portfolio of investments is carried at their fair value. For
donated investments, costs are determined to be fair value at the date of gift.

Fair values and net unrealized gains and losses pertaining to the investment portfolio as ofAugust 31,2010
are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fixed income , , .. . .. $
Fixed income - exempt .
International equities .
Domestic stocks .

$

Net unrealized loss ... , , .. , ....

Fair
Cost Value

395 $ 395
144 144
553 453
758 672--

1,850 $ 1,664
=

$ (186)

Comm. 21D-2 
Page 47 of 99



----------------------------- COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK· 45

Constitutional Tax Limit

The amount that may be raised by the countywide tax levy on real estate in any fiscal year (for purposes other
than debt service on County indebtedness) is limited to one and one-halfper centum (subject to increase up to
two per centum by resolution ofthe County Legislature) ofthe five-year average full valuation oftaxable real
estate of the County, per New York State statutes.' On November 13, 1978, a local law became effective
which limits the maximum amount ofreal estate taxes which can be levied other than for debt service to one
per centum of such average full valuation of all the taxable real estate within the County.

The County constitutional tax limit (per New York State statutes) for the fiscal year ended December 31,2010
is computed as foliows (doliars in thousands):

Five-year average full valuation
of taxable real estate (2006-2010) .... $ 42,320,466

634,807
46,404

681,211
(243,283)

.......... .. ~ 437,928

Tax limit @ 1.5% . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. $
Statutory additions .

Total taxing power .
Total levy . . .

Tax margin. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . =";:;.,,=;;;;;,;,;;;;;;;;;,=

VI - REVENUE ACCRUALS

All major revenues of the County are considered "susceptible to accrual" based on the 60 day rule under the
modified accrual basis. These include property tax, sales tax, state and federal aid, and various grant program
revenues.

Major revenues accrued by the County in the various governmental fund types at December 31, 20 I0 include
sales and use taxes in excess of$46,218,545; state and federal assistance for social services of$1 03,642,462;
and other state and federal aid (including grants) approximating $91,701,131.
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VII - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at year-end of the County's major individual funds and non-major funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Other
Receivables - General Governmental

Governmental Funds Fund ECFSA Funds Total
Rea! property taxes, interest,

penalties and liens ................... $ 78,365 $ $ 10,687 $ 89,052
Sales and use tax .................. 46,219 46,219
Federal and state assistance for

social services programs ..... ....... 103,642 103,642
Other federal and state aid ............. 61,123 1,750 28,828 91,701
Loan ............................... 1,402 1,402
Other .............................. 11,813 33,057 44,870

Gross receivables ................ . . 256,345 47,969 72,572 376,886
Less: allowances for uncollectibles ..... 11,619 - 9,335 20,954

Total receivables ................. $ 244,726 $ 47,969 $ 63,237 $ 355,932

The only Governmentai Fund receivables not expected to be collected within one year are $300 in loan
receivables from the Zoological Society of Buffalo, that are discussed in Note I (M).

Utilities
Receivables - College Aggregation

Proprietary Funds 8/31/10 Fund Total
Accounts receivable ........ . . . . . . . . $ 4,800 $ 932 $ 5,732
Other ........... ............... 6,457 1,347 7,804

Grossreceivables ..... ........... 11,257 2,279 13,536
Less: allowances for uncollectibles ..... 3,876 3,876

Total receivables ................. $ 7,381 $ 2,279 $ 9,660

All Proprietary Fund receivables are expected to be collected within one year.
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VIII - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 20 I 0 was as follows (dollars in thousands):

A. PrimarY Government

1. Governmental Activities

Balance Balance
1/1/10 Increases Decreases 12131/10

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land ..................... .......... $ 30,353 $ 62 $ $ 30,415
Construction in progress ......... . . . . . . . . . . . 45,762 54,545 (20,028) 80,279

Total capital assets, not being depreciated .. 76,115 54,607 (20,028) 110,694

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements ............... 506,734 15,665 522,399
Transportation network ..................... 461,500 10,719 472,219
Sewer network .................... .... 255,227 6,351 - 261,578
Improvements other than buildings ............ 25,926 1,061 26,987
Machinery and equipment ..... ........... 110,067 7,206 (2,424) 114,849

Total capital assets, being depreciated ....... 1,359,454 41,002 __(2,424) 1,398,032

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements ................ . (254,279) (15,489) - (269,768)
Transportation network ..................... (233,922) (19,934) (253,856)
Sewer network . ......................... (76,981) (4,082) - (81,063)
Improvements other than buildings ............ (10,443) (1,310) (11,753)
Machinery and equipment ................... (69,576) (9,912) 2,233 (77,255)

Total accumulated depreciation ............. (645,201) (50,727) 2,233 (693,695)

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net .... 714,253 (9,725) (191) 704,337

Governmental activities capital assets, net . . . . . . . . $ 790,368 $ 44,882 $ (20,219) $ 815,031

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government .
Public safety. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Health .
Transportation. .. . .
Economic assistance and opportunity 0.' ••••

Culture and recreation .
Education .
Home and community service. . . .

Total governmental activities depreciation expense. _

$ 14,680
7,047

432
20,800

138
1,250
1,632

__4,748

$ 50,727
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2. Business-Type Activities*

Balance Balance
911109 Increases Decreases 8131110

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in progress ................... $ 931 $ 2,113 ....L-i1,793) $ 1,251

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Building improvements .. ............ 7,373 1,793 9,166
Land improvements ............ .... 64 - 64
Equipment .......... ................. 21,727 1,042 (207) 22,562
Library collections ............. ............ 2,588 221 (260) 2,549

Total capital assets, being depreciated ....... 31,752 3,056 (467) 34,341

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building improvements .................. (522) (412) (934)
Land improvements ........ ........... (14) (3) (17)
Equipment ............................... (18,223) (908) 204 (18,927)
Library collections ...................... (1,296) (244) 247 (1,293)

Total accumulated depreciation ............. (20,055) (1,567) 451 (21,171)

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net ........ 11,697 1,489 (16) 13,170

College capital assets, net ..................... $ 12,628 $ 3,602 $ (1,809) $ 14,421

* The College (August 31, 2010)

Depreciation expense for the College was $1,566,891 for the year ended August 31, 2010.

B. Component Units

1. Library

Balance Balance
111110 Increases Decreases 12131/10

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Rare book collection. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. $ 11,036 $ 58 $ $ 11,094

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Machinery, equipment and library materials ...... 60,271 3,589 (3,395) 60,465

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Machinery, equipment and library materials ...... (53,550) (3,188) 3,096 (53,642)

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net ........ 6,721 401 (299) 6,823

Library component unit capital assets, net. . . . . . . . .. $ 17,757 $ 459 $ (299) $ 17,917

Depreciation expense for the Library was $3,187,596 for the year ended December 31,2010.
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2. ECMCC

Balance Balance
1/1/10 Increases Decreases 12/31/10

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in progress ... .............. $ 1,216 $ 11,968 $ $ 13,184

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements ................ . . . . . . . . . 2,888 (1,890) 998
Building ................. ........ 221,228 10,128 (5,118) 226,238
Fixed equipment ............................ 3,516 5 (1,412) 2,109
Major moveable equipment ...... 147,949 10,283 (58,679) 99,553

Total capital assets - being depreciated .......... 375,581 20,416 (67,099) 328,898
Lessaccumulated depreciation ................. (298,790) (14,010) 66,449 (246,351)

Total capital assets, being depreciated,net . 76,791 6,406 (650) 82,547

Total ECMCC component unit capital assets ....... $ 78,007 $ 18,374 $ (650) $ 95,731

Depreciation expense for ECMCC was $14,010,000 for the year ended December 31,2010.

IX-PAYABLES

Payables at year-end of the County's major individual funds and non-major funds in the aggregate are as

follows (dollars in thousands):

Other
General ECFSA Governmental

Governmental Funds Fund General Funds Total
Accounts payable .......... $ 26,741 $ 8 $ 14,016 $ 40,765
Other governments. 22,684 908 23,592
Health and social service

programs and agencies .... 28,044 - 1,228 29,272
Retained percentages. 9 1,902 1,911
Salaries & fringes .......... 9,527 1,370 10,897
Other .................... 2,479 28 4,149 6,656

Total payables ........... $ 89,484 $ 36 $ 23,573 $ 113,093

Utility
College Aggregation

Proprietary Funds 8/31/10 Fund Total
Accounts payable .......... $ 1,422 $ 1,804 $ 3,226
Health and social service

programs and agencies ....
Fringes benefits payable ..... 6,672 - 6,672
Other .................... 4,869 1,075 5,944

Total payables ......... $ 12,963 $ 2,879 $ 15,842
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x- RETIREMENT PLANS

Background

The County participates in the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System ("ERS"). In
addition, all faculty and administrators ofthe College have the option ofparticipating in the New York State
Teachers' Retirement System ("TRS") or the Teachers' Insurance and Annuity Association - College
Retirement Equities Fund ("TIAA-CREF").

A. New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System

This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system. The ERS provides retirement benefits, as
well as death and disability benefits. Obligations of employers and employees to contribute and
benefits to employees are governed by the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law
("NYSRSSL"). As set forth in the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller of the State of New York
("Comptroller") serves as sole trustee and administrative head of the ERS. The Comptroller shall
adopt and may amend rules and regulations for the adnllnistration and transaction ofthe business of
the ERS and for the custody and control oftheir funds. The ERS issues a publicly available financial
report that includes fmancial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be
obtained by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement Systems, Gov. Alfred E. Smith
State Office Building, Albany, New York 12244.

Contributions equal to 3% ofsalary are required ofemployees, except for those who joined the ERS
before July 27, 1976 and for those who have ten or more years of credited service. Under the
authority ofthe NYSRSSL, the Comptroller shall certify annually the rates expressed as proportions
ofpayroll ofmembers, which shall be used in computing the contributions required to be made by
employers to the pension accumulation fund.

Contributions are required at an actuarially determined rate. The required ERS contributions for the
current year and two preceding years were:

Contribution Amount

Year
2010 .
2009 .
2008 .

Primary

Government­

ERS
$ 27,705,762

20,340.675
25,385,491

Library

Component
Unit - ERS

$ 1,345,141

999,436
1,346,621

ECMCC
Component
Unit- ERS

$ 16,000,000

10,100,000
10,300,000

The County's contributions made to the ERS were equal to 100% of the contributions required for
each year. The annual payment is due on February I ofthe subsequent year.

B. Teachers' Insurance and Annuity Association - College Retirement Equities Fund

TlAA-CREF is a defmed contribution annuity plan that is an optional retirement program ("ORP")
authorized by the trustees of the State University of New York. TlAAICREF provides benefits
through annuity contracts and provides retirement and death benefits to those employees who elected
to participate in the ORP. Benefits are determined by the amount ofindividual accumulations and the
retirement income option selected. All benefits generally vest after the completion of one year of
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service ifthe employee is retained thereafter. TIAAlCREF is contributory for employees who joined
after July 27,1976, who contribute 3 percent of their salary. For employees enrolled after June 30,
1992, the College contributes 8% ofsalary for the first seven years ofemployment and 10% ofsalary
thereafter. For employees enrolled between July 27, 1976 and June 30, 1992, the College contributes
9% ofthe first $16,500 in salary and 12% thereafter. Employee contributions are deducted from their
salaries and remitted on a current basis to TIAAlCREF.

Contributions made by the College and its employees in the 2010 fiscal year were $2,462,766 and
$202,113, respectively. The total unpaid balance ofthis retirement liability at the end ofthe College's
fiscal year was $92,317.

C. New York State Teachers' Retirement System

The TRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement system. The TRS provides
retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Obligations ofemployers and employees
to contribute, and benefits to employees, are governed by the NYSRSSL and New York State
Education Law. The TRS issues publicly available financial reports that include financial statements
and required supplementary information. The TRS report may be obtained by writing to the New
York State Teachers' Retirement System, 10 Corporate Woods Drive, Albany, New York 12211­
2395.

Contributions equal to 3% ofsalary are required ofemployees, except for those who joined the TRS
before July 27, 1976, and for those who have ten or more years of credited service. Under the
authority ofthe NYSRSSL, the Comptroller shall certify armually the rates expressed as proportions
ofpayroll ofmembers, which shall be used in computing the contributions required to be made by
employers to the pension accumulation fund.

The College is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The required pension
contributions for the College current fiscal year and two preceding fiscal years were:

Year
2010 .
2009 .
2008 .

College
TRS

$ 1,020,091
1,118,358
1,264,363

Employer contributions made to the TRS were equal to 100% ofthe contributions required for each
year. The 2010 and 2009 amounts are the employer portion only, shown to reflect the change in
focus of the disclosure to that of the College's contributions. The 2008 amount included both the
employer and employee contributions.

The total unpaid employer balance of the TRS retirement liabilities at the end ofthe College's fiscal
year was $1,036,818.
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D. Summary of Retirement Plan Liabilities (dollars in thousands):

Retirement Plan/
Description

Business-type
Activities*

ERS

Regular.

Total ..

TRS
Regular .

Total .

TIAA-CREF
Regular .

Total Primary Government.

The College (August 31, 2010)

$

$

1,079

1,079

1,037

1,037

92

2,208

The County has recorded the above retirement liabilities as a component of long-term liabilities on the
statement of net assets. In addition, retirement liabilities have been recorded as accrued liabilities by the
ECMCC Component Unit in the amount of$16,000,000.

XI - CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

The County has a number ofactive construction projects at December 31,20 I 0, The amounts spent to date
and remaining commitments (encumbrances) presented by major project groupings are as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Spent-to-date
$ 18,286

27,911
17,608

820
5,608

Remaining
Commitments
$ 11,365

8,763
4,988

780
485

Projects
General government buildings, equipment and improvements .
Highways, roads, bridges and equipment. . . . . . . . . . . .
Sewers, facilities equipment and improvements .
Special capital projects .
ECMC capital projects. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total . $ 70,233 $ 26,381

* The County has additional future capital commitments related to the ECMCC Sale Agreement, as amended,
totaling approximately $3,651,000 at December 31,2010. Of this amount, $1,010,000 is reflected in the
government-wide financial statements only as a due to component unit.
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Interest Balance Balance Due Within

Purpose* Issue Maturity Rate 1/1/10 Additions Reductions 12131/10 One Year

Subtotals brought forward . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 175,564 s s 107,985 $ 67,579 $ 15,923

Capital 2004 2024 3.25-5.25 56,330 5,025 51,305 5,270
Capital 2005 2034 1.56-4.57 2,975 90 2,885 90
Capital 2005 2033 2.06-4.13 2,235 70 2,165 70
Capital 2005 2020 4.45-5.00 52,500 3,700 48,800 3,880
Capital 2005 2035 3.50-5.00 11,295 240 11,055 250
Capital 2005 2012 5.50 12,230 3,860 8,370 4,075
Refunding 2005 2029 3.50-4.50 47,995 3,585 44,4"10 3,320

Tobacco refunding 2005 varies*** varies"?" 304,725 2,875 301,850
Tobacco settlement 2006 varies'?" varies'?" 17,695 17,695
Capital 2006 2035 0.00-0.00 1,805 70 1,735 70
Capital 2006 2017 3.50-4.00 10,950 1,195 9,755 1,240
Capital 2006 2036 3.50-4.25 4,115 90 4,025 90
ECMCC settlement 2006 2011 4.93-4.99 17,215 8,400 8,815 8,815

Capital 2007 2036 3.63-4.79 4,815 130 4,685 135
Capital 2010 2023 2.00-4.99 157,995 157,995 5,640
Capital 2010 2039 0.290-4.60 5,794 205 5,589 129

Refunding 2010 2020 3.865-21.455 42,175 10 42,165 110
Refunding 2010 2022 2.001-5.00 46,365 520 45,845 2,255
Refunding 2010 2018 0.95-3.13 120 120 15

722,444 252,449 138,050 836,843 ~377

Less bonds issued by the County to ECFSA (mirror bonds):

2010 2023 2.00-4.99 (157,995) (157,995) (5,640)
2010 2020 3.865-21.455 (42,175) (10) (42,165) (110)
2010 2022 2.001-5.00 (46,365) (520) (45,8452 (2,255)

Total mirrorbonds.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (246,535) (530) (246,005) (8,005)

Net governmental activities general
obligation bonds issued by County of Erie and ETASC . . . . . . 722,444 5,914 137,520 590,838 43,372

Governmental activities generalobligation
bonds issued by ECFSA:

2010 2023 2.0-5.0 157,995 157,995 5,640
2010 2022 2.0-5.0 46,365 520 45,845 2,255
2010 2020 2.25-5.24 42,175 42,175 120

Total bonds issued by ECFSA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 246,535 520 246,015 8,015

Total governmental activities general
obligation bonds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 722,444 252,449 138,040 836,853 $ 51,387

Discount on zero coupon bonds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (91)" 44 (47)"
Discount on ETASC bonds.. . ............................ (11,442) (67) (11,375)
Premium on bond issuance .... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,950 7,066 9,884
Premium on bond issuance-ECFSA.......... .............. 27,301 2,440 24,861
Deferred amounton refunding ..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,636) (4,083) (181) (5,538)
Deferred amounton refunding·ETASC ....................... (22,615) (763) (21,852)

Bonds payablefor financial statement purposes ... . . . . ....... $ 703,610 $ 275,711 $ 146,535 $ 832,786

(Concluded)
*Capital = Capital acquisition and construction

** Amount of unamortized discount on zero coupon bonds at issue date was $3,347. Of this amount, $3,256 and $44 have been
amortized in the prior years and the current year, respectively.
***Refer to discussion within Note XII(B) regarding outstanding ETASC bonds payable.
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B. Erie Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation fa Blended Component Unit)

In 2000, ETASC issued $246,325,000 of Tobacco Settlement Asset Backed Bonds, Series 2000
pursuant to an indenture dated as of September 1, 2000 (the "Indenture"). The $246,325,000 bond
issuance was comprised of$196,985,000 Tobacco Settlement Asset Backed Bonds Series 2000A and
$49,340,000 Tobacco Settlement Asset Backed Bonds Series 2000B. The net proceeds ofthe Series
2000 Bonds were used to purchase from the County all of the County's right, title and interest to
Tobacco Settlement Revenues ("TSR") to which the County would otherwise be entitled under the
Master Settlement Agreement ("MSA") and Consent Decree and Final Judgment (the "Decree").

On August 15, 2005, ETASC issued $318,834,680 in Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds with
interest rates ranging from 5.0% to 6.75% to advance refund $239,060,000 of outstanding Series
2000 Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed bonds bearing interest rates ranging from 5.0% to 6.5%
originally issued in 2000. The net proceeds amounted to $305,330,026 after original issuance
discount and payment of$13,504,654 for underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs, of
which $267,037,311 was used to fund an irrevocable trust to defease the remaining original bonds.
This transaction enabled the ETASC to release $55,231,709 in previously restricted funds for debt
service and trapping events to the County.

In connection with this bond issuance, ETASC entered into a forward purchase agreement and an
effective swap ofvariable market rate returns with a fixed rate return that will expire by its terms on
the final maturity of the asset-backed bonds on June 1, 2055. ETASC entered into this forward
purchase agreement to facilitate investtnent ofthe monies in the Debt Service Reserve Fund while the
2005 ETASC bonds are outstanding.

As discussed in Note I (N), ETASC has evaluated the forward purchase agreement using the
consistent critical terms method and deemed it to be effective. As of December 31, 2010, the
notional amount ofthe agreement totals $19,218,750, the fair value is $1,108,170, and net cash flows
during the year totaled $678,430.

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $25,953,936. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial
statements as a deduction from bonds payable, is being charged to operations through the year 2039.
The refunding increases the total debt service over the next 50 years by $121,875,200 resulting in an
economic loss of approximately $31,392,350 at net present value.

On September 15,2005, ETASC entered into an agreement with the bondholders to replace the
government securities in the irrevocable trust with government agency securities. This transaction
generated a savings of $2,802,806. Of this, $1,331,893 was transferred to the County and the
remainder less costs of sale was paid to the bondholders for their concessions.

On January 5, 2006, ETASC issued $17,694,720 oftobacco settlement asset-backed bonds, Series
2006A with an interest rate of7.65%. ETASC entered into a purchase and sale agreement with the
County on January 1, 2006, in which ETASC purchased the County's sole undivided beneficial
interest in and to the trust established by ETASC pursuant to the Declaration and Agreement ofTrust
dated September 1, 2000 between ETASC and the Wihnington Trust Company ("2000 Residential
Trust"), in its capacity as trustee, including the County's right to receive residual tobacco settlement
revenues payable to the County, as sole beneficiary ofthe 2000 Residential Trust. The net proceeds
of$15,638,465 was transferred to the County's General Fund.
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The payment of the Series 2005 and Series 2006 Bonds is dependent on the receipt of TSRs. The
amount ofTSRs actually collected is dependent on many factors including cigarette consumption and
the continued operations of the participating cigarette manufacturers in the MSA. Such bonds are
secured by and payable solely from TSRs and investment earnings pledged under the Indenture and
amounts established and held in accordance with the Indenture. ETASC has no financial assets other
than the collections and reserves and amounts held in the other funds and accounts established under
the Indenture.

ETASC has covenanted to apply 100% of all surplus revenues (defined as revenues which are in
excess of Indenture requirements for the funding of operating expenses and deposits in the Debt
Service account maintained for the funding of interest, principal and other items) to the special
mandatory par redemption ("Turbo Redemptions") of Series 2005 Bonds in order of their maturity
dates, beginning June I, 2006.

Interest on the Series 2005A and E Bonds are payable each June I and December 1. Interest on the
Series B, C, and D bonds as well as the Series2006 Bonds accrue throughout the life of the bonds
but are payable at redemption. Series 2005B, C, and D Bonds are zero-coupon bonds and are subject
to redemption at the option ofETASC beginning in years after 2016. The Series 2006A bonds may
be redeemed after May 31, 20 I 7.
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Details ofETASC's long-term debt are as follows:

$318,834,680
Term Bond

Issue.
Amount

$ 30,330,000

$ 74,685,000

$ 111,480,000

$ 9,163,000

$ 12,565,080

$ 11,141,600

$ 69,470,000

Rate

5.000%

5.000%

5.000%

5.750%

6.250%

6.750%

6.000%

Description

Series 2005A Bonds Due June 1, 2031
Semi-annual interest only payments through maturity, may be
redeemed at the option of the ETASe at anytime in whole or in
partafterJune 1,2015

Series 2005A Bonds Due June 1, 2038
Semi-annual interest only payments through maturity, may be
redeemed at the option of the ETASe at anytime in whole or in
part after June 1, 2015

Series 2005A Bonds Due June 1, 2045
Semi-annual interest only payments through maturity, may be
redeemed at the option of the ETASe at anytime in whole or in
part after June 1,2015

Series 2005B Bonds Due June 1, 2047

Semi-annual interest accrued but not payable until maturity,
subject to redemption at the option of ETASe anytime after June
1, 2015 at accreted values as follows: June 1, 2015 through May
31, 2016, 102%: June 1,2016 through May 31, 2017, 101%:
June 1, 2017 and thereafter, 100%

Series 2005e Bonds Due June 1, 2050

Semi-annual interest accrued but not payable untii maturity,
subject to redemption at the option of ETASe anytime after June
1,2015 at accreted values as follows: June 1, 2015 through May
31,2016, 102%: June 1, 2016 through May 31, 2017, 101%:
June 1, 2017 and thereafter, 100%

Series 2005D Bonds Due June 1, 2055

Semi-annual interest accrued but not payable until maturity,
subject to redemption at the option of ETAse anytime after June
1, 2015 at accreted values as follows: June 1, 2015 through May
31, 2016, 102%: June 1,2016 through May 31,2017, 101%:
June 1, 2017 and thereafter, 100%

Series 2005E Taxable Bonds Due June 1,2028
Semi-annual interest only payments through maturity, may be
redeemed at the option of the ETASe at anytime in whole or in
part after June 1,2015

Projected Final Turbo
Redemption Date

June 1,2018

June 1, 2022

June 1, 2027

June 1,2027

June 1, 2029

June 1,2032

June 1,2016
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$17,694,720
Term Bond

Issue
Amount

$ 17,694,720
Rate

7.650%
Description

Series 2006A Bon,Js Due June 1, 2060
Semi-annual interest accrued but not payable until maturity,
subordinate to the Series 2005 A-EBonds, subject to redemption
at the option of the ETASC anytime after June 1, 2016 at
accreted values as follows: June 1, 2016 through May31,2017,
102%; June 1,2017 through May31, 2018,101%, thereafter
100%

Projected Final Turbo
Redemption Date

June 1, 2037

Changes in bonds payable for the year ended December 31, 2010 was as follows (dollars in
thousands) :

Bonds payable at January 1,2010 .
Principai payments during 2010 .

Bonds payable at December 31, 2010 .

$

$

322,420
(2,875)

319,545

The amount reflected in the statement ofnet assets for ETASC's bonds payable is net ofunamortized
discount on the sale of bonds of$I1,374,631 and loss on defeasance of$21,851,736.

The ETASC's debt service requirements based upon the due dates excluding turbo redemption
payments is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Twelve months ended December 31: Principal Interest

2011 ............................. $ - $ 13,974
2012 ............................. - 13,974
2013 ............................. - 13,974
2014 ............................. - 13,974
2015 ............................. - 13,974
2016-2020 ......................... - 69,869
2021-2025 ......................... - 69,869
2026-2030 ......................... 52,485 61,997
2031-2035 ......................... 30,330 47,300
2036-2040 ......................... 74,685 37,206
2041-2045 ......................... 111,480 25,083
2046-2050 ......................... 21,728 56,812
2051-2055 ......................... 11,142 37,227
2056-2060 ......................... 17,695 67,912

$ 319,545 $ 543,145
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C. Erie County Medical Center Corporation fa Discretelv Presented Compoueut Unit)

Long-term Debt-The following is a summary oflong-tenn bonded debt at December 31,2010:

Erie County-Guaranteed Senior Revenue Bonds,
Series 2004 (interest of 4.1 % to 5.7%) .... $ 97,150,000

The Series 2004 bonds are secured by a pledge of the gross receipts of ECMCC and amounts on
deposit in certain debt service reserve funds. To the extent that the debt service reserve funds fall
below their requirements, the County has agreed to restore such accounts to their requirement.

Pursuant to a Guaranty Agreement, the County has unconditionally guaranteed to ECMCC the
punctual payment of the principal, interest and redemption premium, if any, on the Series 2004
Bonds, as the same shall become due and payable, and has pledged the faith and credit ofthe County
for the performance of such guaranty. A municipal bond insurance policy has been purchased by
ECMCC to guarantee all debt service payments in case of default by ECMCC and the County.

The Series 2004 Bonds require ECMCC to make monthly payments to certain debt service accounts
for the serniaunual payment of interest and the annual payment of principal (principal payments
commenced November 1,2009).

D. Other Long-Term Liabilities

In addition to bonded indebtedness, the County incurs a variety of other long-term liabilities.
Descriptions of these liabilities follow:

1. Due to Retirement Systems

As further explained in Note X, retirement liabilities ofthe primary govemment at December
31, 2010 for amounts due in 2010 and future years are reported in the government-wide
fmancial statements as follows (dollars in thousands):

Business-type
Activities*

Retirement liability outstanding
atyea~end .

Less: Due within one year .

Due in morethanone year.

The College (August 31,2010)

$

$

2,208
2,013

195

The County and its component units have recorded the above retirement liabilities as long-term
liabilities on the statement of net assets. In addition, retirement liabilities have been recorded as
accrued liabilities as follows: ECMCC Component Unit of $16,000,000.

2. Compensated Absences

The value recorded in the government-wide fmancial statements at December 31, 2010, for
governmental activities is $22,311,058 classified as a long-term liability in the
accompanying financial statements, which includes $12,969,136 due within one year. The
following governmental funds have been used in prior years to liquidate this liability:
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General Fund, the Road, Sewer, Grants and Community Development Special Revenue
Funds.

Compensated absences of $4,426,133 have been reported for business-type activities,
classified as fringe benefits payable, on the fund fmancial statements, which includes
$130,000 due within one year.

Compensated absences of the Library component unit totaling $1,695,760 have been
reported as a long-term liability, which includes $903,094 due within one year.
Compensated absences of the ECMCC component unit totaling $9,000,000 have been
reported as an accrued liability.

3. Judgments and Claims

As further explained in Note XV, the County is self-insured. Liabilities are established for
workers' compensation, general and malpractice claims in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance
Issues. Estimated long-term contingent loss liabilities of governmental fund types total
$57,728,125 and have been reported as long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial
statements.

Also, as further explained in Notes XII (E) (4) and XV, ECMCC is self-insured and has
recorded approximately $17,600,000 and $18,400,000 for the long-term portions ofmedical
malpractice and worker's compensation related exposures, respectively.

4. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) - Health Insurance

In applying the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, (adopted during the year
ended December 31,2007), the County recognizes the cost ofpost-employment healthcare in
the year when the employee services are received, reports the accumulated liability from
prior years, and provides information useful in assessing potential demands on the County's
future cash flows. Recognition of the liability accumulated from prior years will be phased
in over 30 years, and commenced with the 2007 liability.

Plan Description - The County provides continuation of medical insurance coverage to
employees if they have been continuously employed by the County for the equivalent ofat
least five years at the time of retirement. The obligation of the County to contribute to the
cost of these benefits has been established pursuant to legislative resolution and various
collective bargaining agreements. The retiree and his or her beneficiaries receive this
coverage for the life ofthe retiree. Healthcare benefits for non-union employees are similar
to those ofunion employees. The retiree's share ofpremium costs in most instances range
from 0% to 50% depending on the employee group, length ofservice and year ofretirement.

Funding Policy - The County currently pays for post-employment health care benefits on a
pay-as-you-go basis, primarily from the General Fund (90%). The remainder is allocated to
the Road, Sewer, Grants and Community Development Special Revenue Funds. These
financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.

Annual Other Post-employment Benefit Cost - For the fiscal year ended December 31,
2010, the County's annual OPEB cost (expense) of $90,048,375 is equal to the Annual
Required Contribution (ARC), which is $92,755,657 minus certain adjustments which
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totaled $2,707,282. Those adjustments were: interest on the net OPEB obligation and
adjustment to the ARC. Considering the annual expense as well as payments for current
health insurance premiums, which totaled $24,653,400 for retirees and their beneficiaries,
the result was an increase in the net OPEB obligation of $65,394,975 for the year ended
December 31,2010.

Annual OPES Cost and Net OPES Obligation (dollars in thousands)

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) , .
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) , .
Normal cosl at beginning of year .
Amortization factor based on 30 years , , , .
Annual covered payroll , , .
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll .

Governmental
Activities

$ 805,062
805,062

31,390
17.40

226,383
355.62%

Business-type
Activities .,

$ 129,166 tu

129,166 I'l

6,094
17.40

53,426
241.77%

Primary
Government

Total
$ 934,228

934,228
37,484

279,809
333.88%

Level Dollar Amortization
Calculation of ARC under Projected Unit Credit Method

31,390
45,371

76,761
5,610

(7,822)

74,549
(20,353)

54,196
130,466

v .... , , . . . . . . . .. ~ 184,662

$

$

6,094
9,901

15,995
1,256

(1,751)

15,500 '
(4,301)

11,199
29,209

40,408

$

$

37,484
55,272

92,756
6,866

(9,573)

90,049
(24,654)

65,395
159,675

225,070

Percent of annual OPEB cost contributed , , . 27,30% 27.75% 27.38%

• The College (August 31,2010)

(1) The College reported AAL and UAAL of $173,689 at August 31, 2010. Subsequent to the issuance of the College's
financial statements, the AAL and UAAL were adjusted to $129,166 by the actuary as refiected herein.

The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010 and the two proceeding years
were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal
Year

Ended
12/31/2010 ..

12/31/2009 .

12/31/2008 .

Annual
OPEB Cost

$ 90,049
77,366
65,085

Percentage of
AnnualOPEB

Cost Contributed
27.38%
27.84%
31.58%

Net
OPEB

Obligation
$ 225,070

159,675
103,848
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Funded Status and Funding Progress - The aPEB plan was unfunded, resulting in an
unfunded accrued liability (VAAL) of $756,743;082 for governmental activities and
$122,456,935 for business-type activities as of the most recent actuarial valuation date of
January 1, 2010.

The County's schedule of funding progress is presented below (dollars in thousands):

Actuarial Ratioof
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL to
Valuation Valueof Liability AAL Funded Covered Covered

Date Assets ("AAL") ("UAAL") Ratio Payroll Payroll
1/1/2010 . . . $ $ 879,200 $ 879,200 -% $ 279,809 314.21%
1/1/2008 . . . - 748,175 748,175 -% 256,543 291.64%
1/1/2006 ... 736,192 736,192 -% 243,332 302.55%

Actuarial valuations ofan ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability ofoccurrence ofevents far into the future. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status ofthe plan and the annual required contributions of
the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding.
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the types ofbenefits provided under the terms ofthe substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and on the historical pattern
ofcost sharing between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects ofshort-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value ofassets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations. Included coverages are "experience-rated" and
annual premiums for experience-rated coverages were used as a proxy for claims costs with
age adjustments for pre-65 and post-65 participants. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability
is being amortized over 30 years on a level dollar open basis.

In the January 1, 2010 actuarial valuation, the liabilities were computed using the projected
unit credit method. The actuarial assumptions utilized an inflation rate of 3.25% and a
4.30% investment rate of return. The latter rate is based on the projected long-term earning
rate of the assets expected to be available to pay benefits. Because the County does not
currently segregate funding for these benefits, the rate selected is the expected return on the
County's assets. The valuation assumes healthcare cost trends as follows: pre-65 medical,
9.00%; post-65 non-Medicare Advantage ("MA") medical, 8.50%; post 65 MA, 30%; and
prescription,8.5%. Healthcare trends are reduced by decrements to reach a rate of5.00% in
2018.

Medical Reimbursements - The County's Medicare Part D prescription drug subsidy, which
reduces the cost of retiree healthcare premiums, is accrued as revenue only in the current
year. Projected subsidies for future years cannot be recognized as a reduction to the actuarial
accrued liability.
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5. Bond Anticipation Notes

During the year ended December 31, 20 I 0, the County issued bond anticipation notes in the
amount of$4,766,947. The County refinanced $500,650 ofthe total amount outstanding of
$5,756,182 on a long-term basis on May 5, 20 II. Accordingly, that portion ofthe obligation
will not require the use of available fmancial resources and has been reclassified as long­
term.

E. SummarY of Chanl!es in Lonl!-Term Liabilities

(1) Includes $44 representing portionof zero coupon bonds discount amortized in current year;
remaining unamortized discount is $47.

(2) Detailed amoritization scheduies for the portionof BANs ciassified as iong-term are not readilyavailable.

2. Business-Type Activities'

Balance Balance Due Within
9/1/09 Additions Reductions 8/31/10 One Year

Retirement liabilities ......... $ 2,067 $ 5,256 $ 5,076 $ 2,247 (1) $ 2,028 (1)

Compensated absences
and fringe benefits ....... 4,201 396 171 4,426 130

OPEB liability .............. 29,209 15,500 4,301 40,408
Business-type activities

Long-termliabilities ..... $ 35,477 $ 21,152 $ 9,548 $ 47,081 $ 2,158

• The College (August 31,2010)

(1) Includes $39 of Retirement Incentive Wages, of which $15 is due within one year.
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3. Library Component Unit

Balance Balance Due Within
111110 Additions Reductions 12131110 One Year

Due to NewYork State and
LocalEmployees'
Retirement System ....... $ 518 $ 2 $ 520 $ $

Compensated absences .. 1,768 1,022 1,094 1,696 903

OPEB Liabilities ............. 7,568 4,797 1,150 11.215

Librai)' ComponentUnit

Long-term liabilities ... $ 9.854 $ 5,821 $ 2,764 $ 12,911 $ 903

4. ECMCC ComQonent Unit

Balance Balance Due Within
111110 Additions Reductions 12131110 One Year

Bonds payable for financial
statement purposes ....... $ 99,305 $ $ 2,155 $ 97,150 $ 2,250

judgments and claims ........ 27,150 24,350 15,500 36,000
OPEB liability ............... 58,890 21,036 4,947 74,979

ECMCC Component Unit
Long-term liabilities. _... $ 185,345 $ 45,386 $ 22,602 $ 208,129 $ 2,250

Additional judgments and claims liabilities for worker's compensation and medical malpractice have
been recorded by ECMCC as accrued liabilities in the amounts of $5,500,000 and $1,000,000,
respectively.

Comm. 21D-2 
Page 67 of 99



------------------------------- COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK· 65

F. Maturity Schedules (dollars in thonsands)

I. Remaining Annual Maturities of Long-Term Liabilities (by Debt Type) - Primary
Govemrnent

Year

2011 .

2012 ..
2013.

Total

$ 77,571

47,394
42,582

Serial

Bonds

$ 51,387
47,175
42,582

Retirement

$ 2,028
219

Compensated

Absences

$ 13,099

JUdgments

and Claims

$ 11,057

OPEB

$

2014.

2015 .
2016-2020 .
2021-2025.

2026-2030 .
2031-2035 .
2036-2040.

2041-2045.
2046-2050 ..
2051-2055.

2056-2060.

Various. (1)

43,262

44,155
192,051

72,593
66,080
39,223

76,300
111,480
21,728

11,142
17,695

285,379

43,262
44,155

192,051

72,593
66,080

39,223
76,300

111,480

21,728
11,142
17,695

836,853

(47)

(11,375)

9,884
24,861

(5,538)
(21,852)

$ 832,786

$ 2,247 $

13,638

26,737

46,671

$ 57,728

225,070

$ 225,070

(1) Payment of compensated absences, [udqments and claims, and OPEB liability are
dependent upon many factors; therefore, timing of future payments is not readily determinable.

(2) Detaii amoritization schedules for the portion of BANs classified as long-term are not readiiy available.
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2. Annual Interest Payments Due on Serial Bonds

Year
2011 ..
2012 .
2013.
2014 .
....."' ... '"LV l'l .

2016-2020.
2021-2025 .
2026-2030 .
2031-2035.
2036-2040 .
2041-2045 .
2046-2050.
2051-2055 .
2056-2060 .

Primary Gov't •
$ 37,233

34,896
32,677
30,739
28,843

115,168
82,046
65,906
48,776
37,355
25,083
56,812
37,227
67,912

Component Unit
ECMCC

$ 5,382
5,279
5,167
5,046
4,918

22,180
17,278
10,710
2,381

Totals ... $ 700,673 $ 78,341

'Excludes long-term SAN interest

3. Principal and Interest Payments Due on County Mirror Bonds to ECFSA

Year Principal Interest
2011 ........ $ 8,005 $ 10,875
2012 .... 14,060 10,556
2013 ........ 17,725 10,007
2014 ........ 22,670 9,129
2015 ........ 23,525 8,186
2016-2020 .... 113,510 24,759
2021-2025 .... 46,510 3,528

Totals ... $ 246,005 $ 77,040

4. Remaining Annual Maturities of Long-Term Liabilities - Library Component Unit

Compensated
Year Total Absences OPES
2011 ........ $ 903 $ 903 $"
2012 ........
2013 ......
2014 ........
2015 ....
2016-2017 ....
Various ...... (1) 12,008 793 11,215

Totals ... $ 12,911 $ 1,696 $ 11,215

(1) Payment of compensated absences and OPES liability is dependent on many factors; therefore,
timing of future payments is not readily determinable.
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5. Remaining Annual Maturities ofLong-Term Liabilities - ECMCC Component Unit

Serial JUdgments
Year Total Bonds and Claims OPEB
2011 ...... $ 2,250 $ 2,250 $ -$-

2012 ........ 2,350 2,350
2013 ........ 2,465 2,465
2014 ........ 2,585 2,585
2015 ..... '" 2,710 2,710
2016-2020 .... 15,970 15,970
2021-2025 .... 20,875 20,875
2026-2030 .... 27,435 27,435
2031-2033 .... 20,510 20,510
Various* ..... 110,979 36,000 74,979

Totals ... $ 208,129 $ 97,150 $ 36,000 $ 74,979

'Payment of judqrnents and claims and OPEB liability is dependent on many factors; therefore,
liming of future payments is not readily determinable.

G. Permanent FinancingJ!.£guirements

Under New York State statutes, permanent bonding ofgenerai County improvements must take place
within five years ofthe date of initial financing. Specially assessed improvements, (e.g., sewer), have
no limitation as to their period of temporary financing, except that a three-year limitation exists where
such fmancing has been obtained through the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation.
The County has permanently financed all significant indebtedness subject to this permanent financing
statute.

H. Constitutional Debt Limit

The County constitutional debt limit at December 31, 2010 is computed as follows (dollars in
thousands);

Five-year average fuil valuation
of taxable reai estate (2006-2010) .

Debt limit @ 7% .
Net indebtedness (after statutory

exclusions) .

Net debt contracting margin .

Percentage of debt contracting
Power exhausted .

$ 42,320,466

$ 2,962,433

545,873 •

$ 2,416,560

18.43%

'Net indebtedness includes general obligation bonds of $614,447,692 (excludes ETASC bonds of
$319,545,000 and includes ECMCC bond guaranty of $97,150,000) less sewer bonds for self­
supporting sewer districts of$68,575,398.
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I. Operating Leases

Operating lease obligations are primarily for rental ofspace. Lease expenditures/expenses for the year
were approximately $6,358,000 for the primary government and $2,000,000 for the ECMCC
component unit. The future minimum rental payments required for non-cancelable operating leases
are (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal
Year
2011 .
2012 .
2013 .
2014 .
2015 .

Primary
Government

$ 3,908
2,228
1,343

663
320

ECMCC
Component Unit
$ 941

504
346
100

Totais ...

J. Defeasance

$ 8,462 $ 1,891

In June 2010, the County issued $88,540,000 in General Obligation Bonds to advance refund
$89,985,000 ofoutstanding bonds. The net proceeds of$98,502,593 plus additional funds of$809,000
were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable
trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As a
result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been
removed from the government-wide statement ofnet assets. At December 31, 2010, $85,955,000 of the
defeased debt was still outstanding.

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $4,083,329. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial
statements as a deduction from bonds payable, is being charged to operations through the year 2022.
The County completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 12
years by $6,354,925 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values ofthe old
and new debt service payments) of $5,474,958.
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XIIl- SHORT-TERM DEBT

Short-term debt of the County may include revenue, tax, and/or bond anticipation notes. These notes are
reported as a fund liability in the fund receiving the proceeds in accordance with the criteria set forth in
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Statement No.6, ClassificationofShort-Term Obligations
Expected to be Refinanced, because legal steps have not been taken to refmance the notes on a long-term
basis.

The following is a summary of changes in the County's short-term debt for the year ended December 31,
2010 (dollars in thousands):

Balance Balance
Description 1/1/10 Issued Redeemed 12131/10
Bond anticipation notes-ECFSA ...... $ 102,675 $ $ 102,675 $'
Bond anticipation notes-Sewer . . . . . . 1,941 4,767 1,452 5,256
Revenue anticipation notes .... . . . . 20,000 20,000
Bond anticipation notes-ECFSA ...... 64,805 44,815 64,805 44,815

Total ......................... $ 169,421 $ 69,582 $ 168,932 $ 70,071

On August 12, 2010 The ECFSA issued a BAN totaling $44,815,000 with an interest rate ofl.25%. On the
same date, the ECFSA paid the County $45,000,000 forthe County's Revenue Anticipation Notes ("RAN").
The RAN matures on June 30, 2011 with an interest rate of 0.88%. The RAN is reported as an interfund
payable of the County's general fund.

The County issued a RAN in the amount of $20,000,000 on December 14, 2010 with an interest rate of
0.79% that matured on April 14, 2011.

The RAN were issued in anticipation of the receipt ofmoneys that will become due during the current fiscal
year from state and federal governments.

As discussed in Note XII (D) (5), the County issued non-interest bearing bond anticipation notes in the
amount of$4,766,947 during the year ended December 3I, 20 I0 that were purchased by the New York State
Environmental Facilities Corporation. Ofthe balance of$5,756,182 at December 31,2010, $500,650 was
refmanced on a long-term basis on May 5,2011, and therefore has been classified as long-term. The
remaining balance totaling $5,255,532 has been deemed short-term since they will be repaid with available
financial resources. The proceeds will be used to finance Sewer District capital projects.
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XIV - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

A. Interfund Receivables and Pavables

Interfund receivables and payables of the County at December 31, 20 I0, and the Community
College at August 31, 2010, consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

Receivable Fund
General Fund

ECFSA

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Nonmajor Proprietary Fund

College

Payable Fund
ECFSA .

Nonmajor Governmental Funds .
College .

General .

ECFSA .
Nonmajor Governmental Funds .

College .

General Fund .

Amount
$ 46,343

31,093
2,877

80,313

45,000

1,317
15,339

16,656

435

558

Total receivables .
Less: timing differences .

Tolal payables . $

142,962
(1,115)

141,847

Interfund receivables exceed interfund payables by $1,114,548. This difference represents interfund
receivables in the amounts of $756,481 and $358,067 recorded by the County and the College
respectively that are not reflected as interfund payables in the corresponding balance sheets because
of the difference between the County and the College fiscal year end.

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (I) interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system,
and (3) payments between funds are made.
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B. Due TolFrom Component Unit and Primary Government

Amounts due between the Component Units and the Primary Government at December 31, 2010,
consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

Receivable Entity
Primary Government-General Fund

Primary Govemment-Nonrnajor
Proprietary Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Payable Entity
ECMCC Component Unit .

ECMCC Component Unit .

ECMCC Component Unit.

Amount
$ 916

$ 1,490

$ 1,120

ECMCC Component Unit

Library Component Unit

Primary Government-General Fund. . . . . . . $ 837

Primary Government - ECFSA General Fund. . . . $ 411

An amount of$l,O 10,000 due from the primary government to ECMCC for future capital projects is
long-term in nature and reported on the government-wide [mandai statements only. This balance is
shown as a reconciling item on the Reconciliation ofthe Balance Sheet~ Governmental Funds to the
Statement ofNet Assets.
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C. lnterfunci Transfers

Interfund transfers for the County for the year ended December 31,2010, and the Community
College for the year ended August 31, 2010, consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

Transfers Out
General Fund

ECFSA

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Transfers In
NonmajorGovernmental Funds . . . . .
Nonrnajor Governmenta! Funds.

NonmajorGovernmental Funds .
NonmajorGovernmental Funds .
College .
ECFSA .
ETCC .

General Fund .
General Fund .
NonmajorGovernmental Funds.
NonmajorGovernmental Funds.
NonmajorGovernmental Funds.

NonmajorGovernmental Funds .
NonmajorGovernmental Funds .
NonmajorGovernmental Funds .
ECFSA. . .
NonmajorGovernmental Funds .
College .

Amount
$ 3,691

55,201
260

11,978
15,629

1,595
1,051

89,405

370,630
124

98,684
1,333

-~3,808

644,579

7,512
4,644

810
4,610

202
1,800

19,578

Purpose- providefinancial resources:
For the local share of grant programs
For general debt service
To supportvarious capital projects
For highwayimprovements
To support College operations
For short-term debt
To support ETCC operations

To support various capital projects
For sewer debt service
For general debt service
For ECFSA debt service
For ETASC debt service
For movable equipment

Total Transfers . $ 753,562
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xv - CONTINGENCIES

A. Self-Insurance Programs

The County is exposed to various risks oflosses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
ofassets; business interruption; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
County assumes the liability for risks relating to property damage, personal injury liability, medical
malpractice and workers' compensation. The County has also elected to purchase some minor
policies from commercial insurers to provide for items such as comprehensive crime and
boiler/machinery coverage, as well as protection ofvaluable papers and records; settled claims have
not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Loss contingency liabilities arising from operations of the College are recorded in accordance with
GASB 10 by the County and are reported in full within governmental activities in the government­
wide financial statements and in the General Fuod when payment is due. They are only recognized as
a College liability when invoiced from the County.

Claims and judgments are recognized as liabilities in the government-wide fmancial statements when
it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. These liabilities include an estimate of claims that have been
incurred but not reported, and the effects of both specific, incremental claims adjustment
expenditures/expenses and estimated recoveries on uosettled claims, if any. Claims and judgments
reportable as part of the County's governmental type fund activities are recognized as expenditures
and liabilities in the General Fund when payment is due.

The County Attorney is responsible for analyzing the Couoty' s claims and judgments and providing
an opinion regarding the Couoty's ability to cover its liabilities in the self-insurance programs. Based
on this analysis, claims and judgments of $57,728,125 were recorded as Governmental Activities
long-term liabilities at December 31, 2010.

In addition, the County has claims in the range of $1,470,000 to $7,025,000 for which there is a
reasonable possibility of a future loss. No accrual has been recorded for such possible losses as of
December 31, 2010. The County is a defendant in various other lawsuits. Although the outcome of
these suits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the County Attorney, the resolution of
these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial condition or results of
operations.

The amounts and classifications of the claims and judgments noted above are based upon information
and opinions from the Couoty Attorney.
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The changes since December 31, 2008 in the reported governmental fund liability for risk
fmancing activities were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year
2009.
2010 .... .

Beginning of
YearLiability

$ 602
1,017

Current-Year
Claims and
Changes in
Estimates

$ 1,017
209

Claim
Payments

$ 602
1,017

Balanceat
Year End

$ ; ,0; 7
209

Erie County Medical Center Corporation
Losses from asserted and unasserted claims identified under ECMCC's incident reporting system are
accrued based on estimates that incorporate ECMCC's past experience, the nature of each claim or
incident, relevant trend factors, and estimated recoveries on unsettled claims. Approximately
$18,600,000 has been accrued at December 31,2010 discounted at 3.25% and included as liabilities
in the accompanying statement ofnet assets. The County assumed ECMCC's malpractice liability for
periods prior to 2004 and, under terms of a consent decree, has agreed to provide ECMCC
indenmification for malpractice related exposures of up to $1,000,000 for each of2006 and 2007.
There are claims in the range of$185,000 to $1,000,000 for which there is a reasonable possibility of
a future loss related to this consent decree. No accrual has been recorded by the County for such
possible losses. Additionally, ECMCC purchased excess insurance for medical malpractice starting
November 19, 2008. The policy provides $20,000,000 of coverage in excess of $5,000,000 of
individual claims or $7,000,000 in aggregate claims. In addition, ECMCC has recorded liabilities of
approximately $23,900,000 for worker's compensation related exposure, discounted at 2.5%.

B. Sales Tax Audits

The State of New York periodically audits its distribution of sales tax revenues to counties
throughout the State. Subsequent revisions to the revenues recorded as ofDecember 31, 2010, if any,
would be reflected in the operating statement in the year that they are calculated.

C. Supplemental!% Sales Tax

Through legislation approved by the County and the State ofNew York, first effective in March of
1985, the County extended an additional 1% sales and compensating use tax. An added requirement
ofthis legislation commencing in 2007, is that the County is required to share $12,500,000 of this tax
with other local municipalities. This tax generated approximately $136,815,644 (gross) for the year
ended December 31, 2010. The enabling legislation allowing this additional tax expires November
30, 2011. Legislative approval by both New York State and the County is required for the
continuation of this revenue source.

D. Supplemental 0.25% Sales Tax

Through legislation approved by the County and the State of New York, the County initiated an
additional 0.25% sales and compensating use tax effective July 1, 2005. This tax generated
approximately $33,992,093 for the year ended December 31, 2010. The enabling legislation
allowing this additional tax expires November 30, 2011. Legislative approval by both New York
State and the County is required for the continuation of this revenue source.
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E. Supplemental 0.50% Sales Tax

The County Legislature approved a home rule message requesting approval of the New Yark State
Legislature to raise the sales tax \1,% to 8.75%. The New York State Legislature approved the Sales
Tax Request in January 2006 and the County Legislature enacted the tax increase effective January
15,2006. This tax generated approximately $67,984,185 for the year ended December 31,2010.
The enabling legislation allowing this additional tax was extended during the year and expires
November 30, 2011.

F. Federal and State Aid

The County receives federal aid, state aid, or both for a portion of its mandated social services
program expenditures (reported in the Economic Assistance and Opportunity category in the frnancial
statements), such as Medicaid, Family Assistance and Safety Net. The County appropriates only the
local share of state administered Medicaid expenditures. Conversely, the County appropriates total
expenditures for Family Assistance and Safety Net programs, and budgets state and/or federal aid as
revenue. Federal and state aid represents approximately 45% of 2011 County appropriations for
social services programs.

The County also receives certain federal, state and private grants. These grants are used primarily to
augment current operations, and for special demonstration projects and programs. Should funding of
any such grant be stopped at any point, the County may assume the cost thereof in its operating
budget or suspend the programs funded by such grant.

The Federal and State governments are not constitutionally obligated to maintain or continue current
levels of federal and state aid to the County. Accordingly, no assurance can be given that present
federal and state aid levels will be maintained in the future. Federal and state budgetary restrictions
which may eliminate or substantially reduce federal or state aid could have a material adverse effect
upon the County, requiring either a counterbalancing increase in revenues from other sources or a
curtailment ofnon-mandated expenditures. Social Services and Medicaid expenditures are generally
mandated by New York State law.

G. Other Contingent Liabilities

1. Financial Assistance Audits

As discussed above, the County receives significant frnancial assistance from numerous
federal and state governmental agencies and third-party payors. The disbursement ofmoneys
received under these programs generally requires compliance with tenus and conditions
specified in the related agreements and are subject to audit by the funding agencies or
payors. Any disallowed expenditures resulting from such audits could become a liability of
the governmental or proprietary funds. At December 31, 2010, ECMCC, a component unit
of the County, has recorded $23,077,000 as an accrued liability for probable third-party
payor settlements. The amount ofany other expenditures that may be disallowed cannot be
determined at this time, although ECMCC expects such amounts to be irrunaterial.
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2. Pollution Remediation

In connection with the implementation of GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and
Financial Reportingfor Pollution Remediation Obligations, the County has identified two
pollution remediation sites that trigger the obligating event criteria. The County is aware that
the New York State Department ofEnvirornnental Conservation has classified these sites as
Class 2 meaning that remediation action is required due to a significant threat posed to the
public health or envirornnent. Although a loss is probable, it is not possible at this time to
reasonably estimate the amount ofany obligation for remediation that would be material to
the County's financial statements because the extent of envirornnental impact, allocation
among the potentially responsible parties, remediation alternatives (which could involve no
or minimal efforts), and concurrence of the regulatory authorities have not yet advanced to
the stage where a reasonable estimate ofany loss that would be material to the enterprise can
be made.

XVI - FUND BALANCE DESIGNATIONS

Designations are not required segregations, but are segregated for a specific purpose by the County at
December 31,2010 and were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Designated for:
Subsequent year's

expenditures ...

Total fund balance
designations ..

. Other Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds-

$ 46,556 $ 7,145 $ 53,701

$ 46,556 $ 7,145 $ 53,701

XVII - JOINT VENTURE

Pursuant to authority provided by New York State statute, a regional off-track betting corporation was
established in 1973 to operate a system of off-track pari-mutuel betting within the Western New York area.
This public benefit corporation, known as the Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation
("Corporation"), is governed by a board ofdirectors comprised ofone member from each participating county
and city. The Corporation's net revenue is divided among the participating counties, with one-half being
distributed based on population and the remainder based On each entity's share of the total wagering in the
region. A county containing an eligible city that has elected to participate in the Corporation must relinquish a
portion of the revenue to which it would otherwise be entitled to such city in an amount equal to the
percentage of the county population attributable to the city. In the case ofErie County, both the County and
the City ofBuffalo participate in the Corporation.

The Corporation has the power to issue bonds and notes to carry out the purposes for which it was formed.
Such bonds, notes or other, obligations are not a debt ofthe participating municipalities, and they may only be
paid from the Corporation's funds.

Corporation total undistributed net revenue decreased by $1,742,193 for the year ended December 31,2010.
The Corporation reported a net revenue available for distribution to participating municipalities of
$1,600,470. In addition, cumulative net revenue retained for capital acquisitions was $23,210,596 at
December 31, 2010. The unexpended balance of funds retained for capital acquisitions cannot exceed the
lesser of 1% oftotal pari-mutuel wagering pools for the previous 12 months or the undepreciated value ofthe
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Corporation's offices, facilities, and premises. Separate financial statements for this joint venture can be
obtained from the Corporation's Comptroller at 8315 Park Road, Batavia, New York, 14020.

XVIII - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Bond Sales

The County issued $650,000 ofgeneral obligation serial bonds dates February 11, 2011 that were purchased
by the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation ("EFC"). The proceeds were used to refund
$650,000 in bonds outstanding with EFC and will reduce the County's future interest obligation.

As discussed further in Notes XII (D) (5) and XIII, on May 5,2011 the County issued $535,170 of general
obligation serial bonds, in part to refinance bond anticipation notes outstanding at December 31, 2010 in the
amount of $500,650 on a long-term basis.

Dissolution of ETCC

In July 2010 the ETCC Board of Directors adopted a series of resolutions that in part facilitate (1) the
termination ofthe third-party servicing agreement effective September 1, 2010 and (2) ETCC' s servicing of
its own tax liens from September 1, 2010 until ETCC is completely dissolved on or before July 31, 2011. As
part of the dissolution, all remaining assets of ETCC will be transferred to the County.

******
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The schedule of funding progress presents the results of OPEB valuations as of January 1,
2010,2008, and 2006 and provides trend information about whether the actuarial values of
the plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.
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Schedule of Funding Progress (Unaudited)
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) - Health Insurance
(dollars in thousands)

Actuarial
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded
Valuation Value of Liability (1) AI'J... Funded

Date Assets ("AAL") ("UAAL") Ratio-
1/1/2010 $ $ 879,200 $ 879,200 $

1/1/2008 748,175 748,175

1/1/2006 736,192 736,192

Notes:
(1) Based on the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method

Ratio of UAAL
Covered to Covered
Payroll Payroll

$ 279,809 314.21%

256,543 291.64%

243,332 302.55%
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COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantorl
Program Tit!e (1)

Federal
i"l::nA
.....rul""\

Number (2) Expenditures (3)

u.s. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Passed through NYS Educatiou Department~ Child Nutrition Cluster:

School Breakfast Program
National School Lunch Program

Total Child Nutrition Cluster

Passed through NYS Department of Social Services -"
Food Stamp Cluster:
State Administrative Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program
State Administrative Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program

Total Food Stamp Cluster

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN
DEVELOPMENT (RUD) - Direct Programs:

Community Development Block Grauts/Entitlemeut Grants
Emergency Shelter Grants Program
Supportive Housing Program
Shelter Plus Care
HOME Investment Partnerships Program

Economic DevelopmentInitiative
Lead Outreach Grauts
Community Development Block Graut ARRA Entitlement
Grants (CDBG-R)

Homelessness Prevention aud Rapid Re-Housing Program
Passed through NYS Department ofHealth~

Lead Outreach Grauts

Total U.S. Department ofRUD

- 81 -

10.553
10.555

10.561
ARRA-I0.561

14.218
14.231
14.235
14.238
14.239
14.251
14.904

ARRA-14.253
ARRA-14.257

14.904

$ 86,780
81,558

168,338

10,199,585
574,109

10,773,694

10,942,032

3,561,538
89,964

3,558,257
3,313,739

890,196
693,178

1,169,583

300,000
834,732

680,624

15,091,811

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2010

Federal Grantor/Paas-Thrcuqh Grantorl
Program Tit!e (1)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:
Direct Programs:

Crime Laboratory Improvement - Combined Offender DNA Index
System Backlog Reduction

Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and Enforcement
of Protection Orders

Services for Trafficking Victims
Passed through NYS Division of Criminal Justice Services:

Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention - AJlocation to States
Violence Against Women Formula Grants
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant
Paul Coverdell Forensic Sciences Improvement Grant Program
Recovery Act - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance

Grant - States
Passed through the City of Buffalo:

Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant
Recovery Act - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance

Grant - Local
Passed through NYS Crime Victims Board:

Crime Victim Assistance

Total U.S. Department of Justice

Federal
CFDA

Number (2) Expenditures (3)

16.564 312,975

16.590 488,099
16.320 143,675

16.540 226,029
16.588 231,749
16.738 180,587
16.742 107,814

ARRA-16.803 166,283

16.592 31,988
16.738 12,915

ARRA-16.804 153,234

16.575 59,409

2,114,757

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR:
Passed through Senior Service America, Inc.:

Senior Community Service Employment Program
Senior Community Service Employment Program

Passed through New York State Office for the Aging:
Senior Community Service Employment Program
Senior Community Service Employment Program

Passed through the Buffalo and Erie County Workforce
Investment Board- WorkIncentivesGrants

Total U.S. Department of Labor

- 82 -

17.235
ARRA-17.235

17.235
ARRA-17.235

17.266

1,560,492
36,765

577,535
72,957

199,980

2,447,729

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2010

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor!
Program Tit!e (1)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION­
Passed through NYS Department ofTransportation:

Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

U.S. NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE HUMANITIES­

Direct Program-

Digital Humanities Start Up Grants

Total U.S. National Endowment For the Humanities

Federal
""ronA
vrLlM

Number (2)

20.205
ARRA-20.205

45.169

Expenditures (3)

12,350,339
6,056,601

18,406,940

17,009

17,009

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
Passed through NYS Department of Health:

State Indoor Radon Grants
Beach Monitoring and Notification Program Implementation Grants
Surveys, Studies, Investigations, Demonstrations, and Special

Purpose Activities Relating to the Clean Air Act
Direct Programs:

Clean School Bus USA
Pest Management Surveys

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

66.032 25,632
66.472 15,468

66.034 245,078

66.036 229,848
66.716 39,811

555,837

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Direct Program -

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant

Total U.S. Department of Energy

- 83 -

ARRA-8 l.l28 90,522

90,522

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2010

Federal GranioriFass-Through Grantor!
Program Tit!e (1)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION­
Passed through NYS Department of Health -

Special Education - Grants for Infants and Families with Disabilities
Special Education - Grants for Infants and Families with Disabilities

Passed through NYS Education Department -

State Fiscal Stabilization Fund - Government Service

Total U.S. Department of Education

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES:
Direct Programs:

Comprehensive Community Mental Health Services for
Children with Serious Emotional Disturbances

Passed through NYS Office for Aging:
Aging Cluster:

Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part B - Grants for
Supportive Services, and Senior Centers

Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part C - Nutrition Services
NutritionServices Incentive Program

Total Aging Cluster

Special Program for the Aging, Title VII, Chapter 2
Long-term Care Ombudsman Services for Older Individuals

Special Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part D - Disease
Prevention, and HealthPromotionServices

Special Programs for the Aging - Title IV & Title II
Discretionary Projects

Special Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part E ­
National Family Caregiver Support

Aging - Congregate Nutrition Services for States
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) Research,

Demonstrations, and Evaluations
Passed through NYS Department of Health:

Family Plarming Services
Immunization Cluster:

Immunization Grants
Immunization Program

Total Innnunization Cluster

- 84 -

Federal
CFDA

Number (2)

84.181
ARRA-84.393

ARRA-84.397

93.104

93.044
93.045
93.053

93.042

93.043

93.048

93.052
ARRA-93.707

93.779

93.217

93.268
ARRA-93.712

Expenditures (3)

609,079
15,333

1,830,802

2,455,214

1,683,808

1,449,239
2,126,908

736,942

4,313,089

22,288

2,847

19,000

562,937
13,566

82,894

46,400

349,577
83,043.

432,620

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor!
Program Tit!e (1)

Passed through NYS Department of Health:
Centers for Disease Controland Prevention- Investigations and

Technical Assistance
Preventative Health Services-Sexually Transmitted Diseases Control
Preventive Health and Health Services Block
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States

Passed through NYS Board ofElections:
Voting Access for Individuals with Disabilities Grant to States

Passed through NYS Department of Social Services:
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Child Support Enforcement
Child Support Enforcement
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State Administered Programs
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance (LIHEAP)
Child Care and Development Block Grant Cluster:

Child Care and Development Block Grant
Child Care and Development Block Grant Recovery

Total Child Care and Development Block Grant Cluster

Child Welfare Service - State Grants
Foster Care, Title IV-E
Foster Care, Title IV-E
Social Services Block Grant
FamilyViolence Prevention and Services Grants
Emergency Contingency Fund for TANF State Program
Medical Assistance Program

Passed through the NYS Department of Mental Health:
Projects for Assistance in Transition fromHomelessness
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services

Passed through NYS Office of Alcoholism and Substance Abuse ­
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE­
Direct Program - Retired and Senior Volunteer Program

Total Corporation for National and Community Service

- 85 -

Federal...........
""ruM.

Number (2)

93.283
93.977
93.991
93.994

93.617

93.558
93.563

ARRA-93.563
93.566
93.568

93.575
ARRA-93.713

93.645
93.658

ARRA-93.658
93.667
93.671

ARRA-93.714
93.778

93.150
93.958

93.959

94.002

Expenditures (3)

1,578,796
103,447
315,879
679,655

74,125

66,254,111
3,603,565
1,259,812

454,405
56,176,386

14,083,142
1,695,787

15,778,929

1,536,346
19,203,582

1,280,540
9,023,988

41,192
7,010

18,669,318

91,350
568,952

3,225,422

207,106,259

68,661

68,661

(Continued)
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97.036 1,996,500
97.042 280,684
97.052 31,788

97.067 9,361
97.067 99,970
97.067 863
97.067 419,470
97.067 495,575
97.067 93,074
97.067 350,215
97.067 250,864
97.067 3,022
97.067 6,490
97.067 458,995
97.067 68,202
97.067 120,000

2,376,101

97.073 __1,997

__4,687,070

$ 264,071,041

(Concluded)

COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2010

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor!
Program Title (1)

SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION ­
Direct Program - Supplemental Security Income

Total Social Security Administration

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:
Passed through NYS Division of Homeland Security and

Emergency Services:
Disaster Grants - Public Assist. (Presidentially Declared

Disasters) ~DR-1857
Emergency Management Performance Grants
Emergency Operations Centers
Homeland Security Grant Program:

Contract C834260
Contract C834270
Contract C834272
Contract C834273
Contract C834280
Contract C834281
Contract C834282
Contract C834289
Contract C834290
Contract C834292
Contract C845283
Contract C845285
Contract C845291

Total Homeland Security Grant Program

State Homeland Security Program - Contract C834263

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (4)

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

- 86 -

Federal
"'~nA
\,IoruM.

Number (2)

96.006

Expenditures (3)

87,200

87,200
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COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2010

1. Includes all federal award programs of the County of Erie, New York. The federal award programs of
Erie Community College and Erie County Medical Center Corporation are not included, since those
entities' federal award programs were audited by other auditors and are reported on separately by those
auditors.

2. Source: Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) - as revised for 2010.

3. Prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as
applied to government units and includes all federal program expenditures. Presented in accordance with
the requirements ofOMB Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations.

4. A reconciliation to the basic financial statements is available.

5. Certain program funds are passed through the County to subrecipient organizations. The Schedules of
Expenditures of Federal Awards does not contain separate schedules disclosing how the subrecipients
outside of the County's control utilized the funds. The County requires subrecipients receiving funding to
submit separate audit reports disclosing the useofprogram funds.

******
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Deloittei!

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDiT OF FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

Honorable County Executive
Honorable County Comptroller
Members of the County Legislature
County of Erie, New York

Delcltte & Touche LLP
6500 Sheridan Drive
Suite 216
Williamsville, NY 14221-4842

USA

Tel: +1 7168437200
Fax: +1 7168567760
www.deloitte.com

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the County ofErie, New York (the "County"), as ofand for the year ended December 31,
2010 (with the Erie Community College for the year ended August 31, 2010), which collectively
comprise the County's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 30, 201l.
Our report includes a reference to other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Other auditors audited the financial statements of Erie Community College, Erie Community
College Foundation, Inc., Auxiliary Services Corporation of Erie Community College, Inc., Erie County
Fiscal Stability Authority, Erie County Medical Center Corporation, ECMC Lifeline Foundation, Inc.,
Research for Health in Erie County, Inc., and the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation and Subsidiary, as described in our report on the County's fmancial statements. This report
does not include the results of the other auditors' testing of internal control over fmancial reporting or
compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. The financial statements
of Erie Community College Foundation, Inc., Auxiliary Services Corporation ofErie Community
College, Inc., ECMC Lifeline Foundation, Inc., and Research for Health in Erie County, Inc. were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County's internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the fmancial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the County's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the County's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course ofperforming their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Member of
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified a deficiency in internal control over fmancial
reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2010-1, that
we consider to be a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the County in a separate letter dated June 30,
2011.

The County's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the County's response, and accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use ofmanagement, the audit committee, others
within the entity, federal awarding agencies, state funding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

DJOl:f(C [-r;~LLr
I

June 30, 2011
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Deloitte~

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH·
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL
EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON iNTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable County Executive
Honorable County Comptroller
Members of the County Legislature
County of Erie, New York

Compliance

Deloltte & Touche LLP
6500 Sheridan Drive
Suite 216
Williamsville, NY 14221-4842
USA

Tel: + 1 716843 7200
Fax: +1 7168567760
www.deloitte.com

We have audited the compliance of the County ofErie, New York (the "County") with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office ofManagement and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended December 31, 2010. The County's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its
major federal programs is the responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the County's compliance based on our audit.

The County's basic financial statements include the operations of Erie Community College (the
"College") and the Erie County Medical Center Corporation (the "Corporation"), which received
$32,913,954 and $2,042,682, respectively, in federal awards which are not included in the County's
schedule of expenditures offederal awards for the year ended December 31, 2010. Our audit, described
below, did not include the operations of the College or the Corporation because the College and the
Corporation engaged other auditors to perform an audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States ofAmerica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types ofcompliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination of the County's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended December 31, 2010.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management ofthe County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County's internal control over compliance with
the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course ofperforming their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in the
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, others
within the entity, federal awarding agencies, state funding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

])JOI:f{-( {-r;~ LLP
1

September 30, 2011
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COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

PART I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditors' report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

1. . Material weakness(es) identified? Yes x No

2. Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to be
material weaknesses? x Yes N/A

3. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? .w X

FEDERAL AWARDS:

Internal control over major programs:

X4. Material weakness(es) identified? Yes----

5. Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to be
material weakness(es)? Yes X N/A

Type ofauditors' report issued on compliance for major
programs: Unqualified

6. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with OMB Circular A-B3 (Section .51O(a))?

r es X"
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7. The County's major programs were:

Name of Federal Program

Supportive Housing Program
Shelter PlusCare
ChildCare and Development Fund Cluster
Medical Assistance Cluster
Low IncomeHome EnergyAssistance
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse
Recovery Act~ Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant - States
Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program
Senior Community Service Employment Program
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
State Fiscal Stabilization Fund - Govermnent Services
Child Support Enforcement
Aging Cluster

CFDA
Number

14.235
14.238

93.575, ARRA-93.7l3
93.778
93.568
93.959

ARRA-16.803
ARRA-14.257

17.235, ARRA-17.235
20.205, ARRA-20.205

ARRA-84.397
93.563, ARRA-93.563

93.044,93.045,
93.053, ARRA-93.707

8. Dollar threshold nsed to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs? $ 3,000,000

9. Anditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

- 94-
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COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

PART II. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS SECTION

Matters are noted as being reportable as follows:

2010-1: OVERALL RISK ASSESSMENT

Condition - The County currently has not performed an enterprise-wide risk assessment of risks facing the
County, including fraud risks.

Criteria - The enterprise risk management framework of the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission includes five interrelated components of internal control, one of which is risk
assessment. A formal risk assessment is the cornerstone to an effective internal control program and provides
the framework by which internal controls can be designed, implemented, and evaluated for effectiveness. As
part of a risk assessment process, the consideration of the risk of fraud is essential (0 evaluating whether or
not the appropriate controls are in place.

Cause - We understand that management along with professional advisers have reviewed insurance-related
risks facing the County. We also understand that the County initiated a request for proposal to engage an
outside firm to assist with a formally documented enterprise-wide risk assessment process but has not secured
funds within the budget to move forward with such a project.

Effect - The potential for reporting fraud in the financial statements exists.

Recommendation - The County's risk assessment process should include formal documentation of the risks
related to fraud at the entity level. Implementing this formal process will further assist management in
determining whether or not they have designed the appropriate controls related to the areas of the County that
are most susceptible to risk, including fraud. This risk assessment process will also provide an objective view
of the County's level of controls compared to the level of risk and may provide opportunities for the County
to develop a more efficient and effective control structure. It is important that this process specifically address
the risks related to fraud in the financial statements to allow the County to assess whether controls are in place
to effectively mitigate risks related to fraud.

Auditee Response - We agree with this comment. The County Comptroller's Office conducted a request for
proposals in 2008 to perform an entity-wide risk assessment. The Comptroller's Office repeatedly requested
funds to complete the assessment, but funding has not yet been made available by County management.

PART III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS SECTION

No instances were noted as being reportable.
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COUNTY OF ERIE, NEW YORK

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

2009-1: OVERALL RISK ASSESSMENT

Condition - The County currently has not performed an enterprise-wide risk assessment of risks facing the
County, including fraud risks.

Status - The County Comptroller's Office conducted a request for proposals in 2008 to perform an entity­
wide risk assessment. The Comptroller's Office repeatedly requested funds to complete the assessment, but
funding has not yet been made available by County management. The finding is still applicable in 2010 and
has been included in the financial statement findings section as item 20 I0-1.

******
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